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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%}

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club

http://www.haomama.com

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS A=

Turnover (HK$ million) Profit/(loss) Attributable to Shareholders (HK$ million)
EXBBEHEEET) RERELER,(B18) (B EET)
$m $m
5,000 160
4,500 140

141
131
4,117 122
4,000 120
3,618
3,500 100 o1
3 OOO OyRRO 80
2,510 60
2,500
2,193 40
2,000
20
1,500 0
1,000 (20) I
500 (40) 36)
0 (60)

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Equity Attributable to Shareholders (HK$ million) Basic Earnings/(loss) per Share and
RERELER B FET) Dividend per Share (HK$)
BREARERN (BR)RERRE(E¥T)

$'m $(DPS) $(EPS)
1,800 0.22 059 0-60
1,612 0.0 21
: L - 050
1,600 1535 0.20
1,474
1,407 X -1 0.40
1,400 %88 018 _
~0.30
1,200 0.16 [~
0.16 ! 1020
1,000 0.14 |~
-0.10
800 012 -
~0.00
600 010 - <010
4 0.08 : 0.20
0 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 ©.20

® DPS = EPS (Basic)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B #ig=

Consolidated Results

HEEE

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THILEEE

(HK$ million) 2014 20183 2012 2011 2010
(BEEET) =t ulds —F-—=F C—E--—§ —ZT——-F C"E-EF
Turnover =E 20 4,117 3,618 2,889 2,510 2,193
GP% ER= 17% 16% 13% 18% 20%
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRELAIEF], (E5E) 176 166 (27) 113 143
Taxation charges BiEXH (35) (35) (9) (22) (21)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERHN/ (F8) 141 131 (36) 91 122
Non-controlling interests FIERES - - - - —
Profit/(loss) attributable A\ SR EFEN

to shareholders of the m#, (E8E)

Company 141 131 (36) 91 122
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
SEEEREBE

At 30 June
MRA=+H

(HK$ million) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(BEEET) = s —E-=f —E-—f T ZE-ZF
Total assets BEE 2,472 2,258 2,146 2,082 1,812
Total liabilities BEfE (849) (712) (728) (597) (413)
Non-controlling interests  FEIEREHEZS (11) (11) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to EATIE

shareholders of the FEIG LS

Company 1,612 1,535 1,407 1,474 1,388

—T-NFEFR FIR(FE)BERAF



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B #ig=

Key Financial Indicators

FEMBIER

Earnings/(loss) per share SREF,/(Ei8)

(HKS) ()

Basic L= 0.59

Diluted i3] 0.58
Dividend per share (HK$) SRIRE (&) 0.21
Equity-debt ratio* BB B E 100:0

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=+HILEE

2013 2012 2011 2010
—2-=F —ET--f —Z-—-F —Z2-TF
0.55 (0.15) 0.38 0.50
0.55 (0.15) 0.38 0.50
0.18 0.08 0.16 0.16
100:0 100:0 96:4 100:0

total bank borrowings less cash and short term funds.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the equity attributed to
shareholders of the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises

EAXABBUERANARREGERETE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE& I ERESE

| am pleased to present our annual report for the financial year
ended 30 June 2014.

The Group had continued on its growth path benefitting from
ongoing strategic measures which were taken earlier to produce
a turn-around year in FY12/18.

Despite a slowing Chinese economy during the financial year,
our Food Segment continued to achieve growth with Flour
business making deeper and wider penetration nationwide into
various markets and channels with its existing and new products.
Edible Oil business established a firmer foothold in Guangdong
Province. Our Detergent Segment again delivered good financial
results with wider distribution.

Overview

The lingering unstable global economic and political environment
took a toll on various commodities as consumer confidence
fluctuated throughout the year. A softer Chinese economy,
coupled with higher wheat prices and labour costs, saw margins
squeezed as price increases could not fully offset cost increases.
The Group addressed these external factors with prudent
procurement strategy and continuous productivity improvement
over all aspects of our businesses to sustain our profitability
during this challenging year.

With the inauguration of our new flour factory in West China
at the end of 2013, our production infrastructure is now
completed and ready to position us well for growth as our
market penetration effort continues. Our continued sales and
volume growth in flour improved our overall plant utilization
rate. Our Oil and Detergent factories in South China had more
facility upgrades during the year to enable us to uphold the high
product/service quality and safety standards to differentiate us
from the competition.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE& I ERESE

Financial Results

Turnover increased 14% over last year to HK$4,117 million while
gross profit increased from last year's HK$576 million to HK$682
million with margin improved from 15.9% to 16.6%. Group profit
after-tax was up 7.4% at HK$141 million versus HK$131 million
of the previous year. Net of the non-recurring gain of HK$28.6
million from last year and HK$4.1 million this year from disposal
of an industrial property to an independent third party, Group
profit after-tax recorded a 33% increase against last year.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.13 per
share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Along with
the interim dividend of HK$0.08 per share paid earlier this year
(2013: interim dividend of HK$0.06 and final dividend of HK$0.12
per share), gives a total dividend of HK$0.21 per share for the
year.

Given the ongoing improved Group performance and continued
strict financial discipline in inventory management and capital
expenditure, the Group showed a higher net cash position of
HK$289 million at 30 June 2014 as compared to HK$221 million
last year.

Business Review

Notwithstanding the challenging market conditions, the Group
sustained a double-digit revenue growth in both our Food and
Detergent Segments. Our core brands such as Flour’s Golden
Statue, Edible Oil's Knife, and Detergent’s AXE and Labour,

registered healthy growth in both revenue and gross profit.

r ulm
sl —
| e e\ e

_

b -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

CPEEE

3R A B 1 4,117,000,000 7T ¢ B & F 1
R14% - £ Fl B £ F #9 B % 576,000,000
T R E 8 #682,000,0007T 0 £ X & A
15.9% MEZE16.6% o NEBRBE BT B
141,000,000 7T @ B8 £ & # % 131,000,000 7T
FFH7.4% o 1k & F B ¥ 28,600,000 7T K& A
FHE¥A100,000 A —BBELE=FHET
EAMEMESHNIELCEMRES  AEENKR
HEBERFBREF LA 33%

EERREERRBEFESLEZRERBR
ESRAE®013 T BERAFERACIKEMN
FHREESREBE0BT(ZE—=F: F
BRESREY 0.6 TR ARPREFGRBEL0.12
L) AEESHRERESRBE0.21T -

BEAEBRAFENRS  MELEFEEER
EXBMIXAAEESTEEEYRE R=F
—WUEXRA=ZTH AEEZRESFHEABY
289,000,000 7t » B % £ & # 221,000,000 7T
BFTIEM o

ZEF5mER

BETSEREZRURE  AEERRKERER

A MRS EERGELBFTHER - BA
ot mr AN & BAE 1ER [ DR IR Ao
URIFEEIRIETRIFZARNEERE
MERERZERRER -

]
A




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE& I ERESE

Business Review (continued)

To sustain profitable growth of our businesses, we are placing
more emphasis this year on new products and channels, and
expediting our distribution expansion for our Oil and Detergent
business in our Guangdong Province stronghold as well as select
Provinces outside of Guangdong, particularly in the South China
region. For growing our Flour business sales and volume we will
continue to develop a new business-to-consumer model using
various distribution channels including retail and e-Commerce.
This will supplement our traditional business-to-business model
in an effort to create a bigger awareness of our consumer brands
for our flour product.

Outlook

With China’s GDP growth rate projected at a moderate 7.5% in
2014, we see reasonable growth opportunities for our products
in our Food and Detergent segments. Building on our reputation
and brands we are confident that our high product/service
quality and good safety record will continue to differentiate us
from the competition thus enabling us to satisfy and attract more
customers and consumers nationwide.

To keep on growing and doing well, we remain vigilant to counter
volatile material costs through our ongoing cost rationalisation,
organization rightsizing, improved productivity, inventory/spend
management, operational efficiency, and product improvements
through R&D.

We plan to invest more for staff development to retain and
attract talents who can contribute towards producing quality
products and best services.

With the strong foundation laid in the past two years giving us a
good business platform with a growing channel and distribution
network, we are cautiously optimistic to deliver sustainable

growth in the year ahead.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE& I ERESE

Appreciation

Subsequent to Mr. Lo Kwong Chi, Clement’s retirement from the
Board last year, we welcome Mr. Lester Garson Huang as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.

As always, | would like to thank our customers, business
partners, bankers and stakeholders for their continued support,
and the Board of Directors for their advice during the year. |
would also like to express my appreciation for our management
and staff who had worked hard and well to execute our strategic
plans to maintain our growth momentum. As we begin a new
and challenging year, we aim to fulfil once again our mission to
provide high quality and safe products for a healthier and more
delightful life for our customers.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2014

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS $£E4E

Opening Ceremony of Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food Company Limited - November 2013

#lE (I ERBRAERITHERZER - 2013F 11 A

ARsdApLe |
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Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2013 - December 2013
2013 FEEFEETIRE - 2013128

—T-NFEFR FIR(FE)BERAF



The 17th International Trade Fair for the Baking and Confectionary Industry in China
- May 2014

E+tEPEHEREEREE - 2014554
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS $£E4E

“Knife” cooking oil cooperated with The Hong Kong Mathematical Olympiad School on
student development and presented scholarship for the winners.

NBRHRAFERBRARERERBFHHBERR  MERBSFRARKC RN B EEHE

* A (14

The Group had supported the activities organized by St. James’s Settlement under t

charity project including donation of cooking oil to People’s Food Bank and participation
voluntary service.

HERZEHE RESARVERTIEE  REEEAL  SERBERMRS2ESHEIE
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS $£E4E

“Knife” cooking oil and “Golden Statue” pre-mix flour jointly organised a series of “Love
Dad and Mum, Healthy Cooking Workshops” with The Link - May to November 2014.

[ Rk SRR EaRnEGESH 285 RRABIEY] - 2014F5AF 114
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4E

Honour and Awards 2522 B8 15

7SN

B e e L
LU R R
-] I - g -
“Caring Company Award 2013-2014” by The Hong Kong Council of Social :
Service
EEBERBHS R HRREBE2013 - 2014 IFHH# e

Knife — 14th Wellcome “Favourite
Brands - Mum’s Favourite brand
Award”

- I [ BB RE14E + KBH A
e HPAS 41 1% e g Uf e - . B-GREEmEIE
v hid el VoV \ :

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited was

awarded “National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment,
Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover (2012-Shenzhen)” by China
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

YT IE B R R T E N R A SR BB RAY R A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS $£E4E

“Golden Statue” was awarded “Shenzhen Top Brand 2014-2016” by
Shenzhen Top Brands Evaluation Committee

[EE BRI EREFEZESSFRRINMEME (2014 - 2016) ]

o i

RAE" [MXE]

“Jiangsu Famous Brand (2013-2016)” by Jiangsu Promotion
Commission for Famous Brand Strategy

BI#HESMERIEEZSERATIASM (2013 - 2016) ]

16

“Jiangsu Famous Brand (2013-2016)” by Jiangsu Province
Administration for Industry and Commerce

.y, == BIH%ETHTHREERIAERNIHEZERHER(2013 - 2016) ]
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Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited was
awarded the following by China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation, The Center
for Credit Rating and Authentication, Chinese Academy of
International Trade and Economic Cooperation & Brand
Research Center, Chinese Academy of Management
Science

— “Grade AAA Enterprise in Quality, Services and Reputation
in China (2013)”
— “Top 10 Enterprise in China’s Flour Industry (2013)”

ORIEERERATDEFEEBREERMEERES &
IR E AR ERER O - FEEERNEWRIE R E
MR OER LT 88

-[2EEE - REE - 2 AAAREZELE(2013)

- [N 158 (2013) ]
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %75 El1EA

Operations Review

Global and PRC domestic commodity prices remained volatile
amidst an uncertain economic and political environment
throughout the financial year. The Group took on a prudent
approach in its procurement process just as many of our
customers/distributors adopted a just-in-time approach to their
purchasing and inventory management. This was especially so
for our Edible Oil business. This trend is expected to continue
until the volatile commodity market stabilises.

Food Segment (Edible Oil and Flour businesses)

The Segment continued its growth momentum, achieving 14%
revenue growth to HK$3,598 million while the operating result
increased 8% to a profit of HK$146 million.

Despite the downward material cost trend and conservative
buying patterns of our customers in FY13/14, our Edible Oil
business achieved modest growth in volume with a healthy
profitability as cost decreases outpaced selling price decreases.
Our continued efforts in delivering product quality and safety to
our customers and consumers reinforced our trustworthy brand
position, as reflected in our market share in Hong Kong and
South China. We will continue to build our brand presence in
existing regions as well as those outside via new product and

packaging introductions in the new financial year.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %7 [CIEE

Operations Review (continueq)

Food Segment (Edible Oil and Flour businesses)

(continued)

Our Flour business further consolidated its premium position in
China with our Golden Statue and American Roses brands during
the year. Through continued double-digit growth in sales and
volume, the overall factory utilisation rate gradually improved.
Bolstered by the growing bread maker partnership with the
reputable Panasonic appliance brand in Hong Kong and a new
partnership in China, the new non-institutional small-pack premix
products introduced in 2013 continued to grow. In FY14/15,
we will develop further this premium series of premix products
in Hong Kong and China and invest more to penetrate these
markets using both on-line and off-line distribution channels to
expedite sales, volume, and profit growth.

¥ FZOEE )

BRI (RMBERETR) (4)

RER - RIVRHE G IR ZHE IR EE
—SEREHRBEHETENEE M - EHE
BARHELEHREEUHTFTERT  BEEE
ERRELSBENRE - BEHEDTBENBESR
BB ENAERSEUREPRERBH
MERE-THKR RN -—=FHEHD
FIXRNEERRPERBBERGER - R
2RI/ -AMBEE BRMAEREBRF
RE-SBRESVAIINEHDER - LM
REREBEZETS  MARLRETHNDHE
RERENERE HERBINER -

Turnover - Food Segment (HK$ million) Profit/(loss) from operations — Food Segment (HK$ million)
BEH - AaanBoErEET) mREn S (BE) - RRfBOBKEET)
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160
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %7 [CIEE

Operations Review (continued)
Detergent Segment

This segment delivered another year of solid performance with
13% revenue growth versus last year despite two major floods
in South China that affected our business. Revenue recorded
HK$517 million and operating profit reached HK$78 million,
representing an increase of 13% and 12% respectively, over
last year. These results were achieved amid continued rising
material, marketing/promotional, and labour costs in an intensely
competitive segment.

Our core brand, AXE gained further consumer acceptance
supported by a wider and deeper penetration in markets where
we operated, and introduction of new products such as the
colour-locked liquid detergent and kitchen cleaning products
since last year in both Hong Kong and China. This further
enhanced AXE brand’s position in the markets. We will leverage
on such momentum by continually introducing new products to
expedite growth in overall market coverage especially in regions
beyond our traditionally Guangdong stronghold for both our AXE
and Labour brands.

Turnover - Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
BEH - FRRARYBE¥EET)

$'m

600

517
500

400

456
376
341
304

300
200
100

0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

EFROIEE @
EEE RS

BAEEHEREMAARBE KKERMANE
BEREE FXO2BALAFTEEEETRRE
B WMABEEFERIZH KH EHEEFK
A B #517,000,000 7T @ A& & K B Z B
#78,000,0007T BEF 2 Al £ A13% K
12% o RN EERM B - &8 HWERA DK
AEELRNERT  DERERFHIUNIRE
RELS N A AE o

BEAMEEENTERAEQRRRMES
ENXRE MEBEFEREBEBRPEEL
SRYER(NEECEERKARBEREEZA
m) > RN O R FEE BEESEEE
BR o WBRE-SRATFEE IRTS LA
fi o B TEHELIER - LIRS IIRNFE
BRI TEIREEHEEERNER @ £
ERMEGEEERUIIMME

Profit from operation — Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %75 El1EA

Financial Review
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group’s turnover
increased by HK$499 million or 14% to HK$4,117 million.
Despite the increasing wheat prices and labour costs during the
year, the Group’s gross margin improved from 15.9% to 16.6%.

In order to support market development and promote new
products, the Group invested more on marketing. Selling and
distribution expenses as a percentage of turnover increased from
8.5% t0 9.1%.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2014, the Group had a net cash position (defined
as cash minus bank loans and obligations under finance leases)
of HK$289 million (2013: HK$221 million). This was mainly
attributable to the increased operating profit.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had a cash balance of HK$643
million (2013: HK$490 million). About 94% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 5% in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), and 1% in United States dollars (“USD”) and Macau
Pataca (“MOP”).

At 30 June 2014, the Group had HK$820 million committed
bank facilities (2013: HK$569 million) and had outstanding
borrowings of HK$353 million (2013: HK$269 million), of which
HK$269 million were repayable within 1 year. The maturity profile
of the Group’s borrowing is set out in note 26 to the financial
statements. Except for an outstanding fixed term loan amounting
to HK$100 million, all bank borrowings carried interest at floating
rates.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed
to manage and mitigate the commodities price risk and currency
risk for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2014, the inventory turnover days were 70 days
(2013: 72 days). The trade receivable turnover days remained at
a healthy level of 25 days (2013: 25 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.
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Financial Review (continueq)
Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated
in RMB, HK$, and MOP. All the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in HKS$.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
Details of the foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out
in note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Net exchange loss for the year is set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested a total sum of HK$38 million
(2013: HK$59 million) on acquisition of plant equipment and
construction of a new factory building.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in
note 33(a) to the financial statements.

Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2014, there were 1,601 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to
retain, reward and motivate individuals for their contributions
to the Group. Share options are granted to the Group
Managing Director and other eligible employees to recognise
their contribution and provide incentives to achieve better

performance in coming years.
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Financial Review (continued)
Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide spectrum
of community services targeting the needy in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by St. James’s Settlement under the charity
project including donation of cooking oil to People’s Food Bank
and participation in voluntary service. The Group was presented
with the Caring Company Award 2013 — 2014 by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for fostering good corporate citizenship
in both public and private sectors.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EEf1Y

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 61, is the Chairman of the Company since October
2006 and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Nomination Committee and a member of

Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President, CEO of Guoco Group Limited
(“GGL"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He also holds
directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated companies
of GGL including Guocoland Limited and Guocoleisure Limited,
both listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed on Bursa Malaysia.
He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the

Company.

Joseph Leung

Aged 53, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in May 2012.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in Economics and a master
degree in Business Administration (Marketing) from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA. He has over 27
years of experience in the food and consumer products sectors.
Prior to joining the Company, he had worked in Hong Kong and
United States of America with companies including Sara Lee
Corporation, Heinz USA and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
USA.
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Whang Sun Tze

Ph.D.

Aged 70, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 66, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an executive director of GGL and is the managing
director of GuocoCapital Limited and GuocoCapital Futures
Limited (formerly known as GuocoCommodities Limited), wholly-
owned subsidiaries of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science
first class honours degree in engineering from University of
Surrey and a Master of Science degree in management from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He had previously worked
in Geneva in 1974 with the United Nations Conference on Trade
and Development. He had also served in the Singapore Civil
Service as a Colombo Plan Scholar 1975-1978 before coming
to work in Hong Kong with a financial services company and a
major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan has extensive experience in property

investment, financial and investment management services.
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Aged 64, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and as Non-Executive Director
in 2004.

Mr. Tsang is the General Manager, Business Planning of Guoco
Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GGL. Prior to that, he was the chief financial officer of GGL.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) as well as an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Aged 65, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit Committee and a member of Board
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking,
finance and investments. He worked for a number of well-known
financial institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and a member
of the audit committee and the chairman of nomination
committee of the Taiwan Fund Inc, which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director and the audit committee chairman of IDT International
Limited; independent non-executive director, the audit committee
chairman and members of the compensation and nomination
committees of Playmates Holdings Limited; independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of
the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and
independent non-executive director, audit committee chairman
and member of the nomination committees of Convenience
Retail Asia Limited.
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Au Chee Ming

Aged 63, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee and a member of
Board Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.

Huang Lester Garson
J.P.

Aged 54, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in November 2013. He is a member
of the Board Audit Committee and the Board Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently a managing partner of P. C. Woo & Co., a solicitor’s
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified solicitor
of Hong Kong in March 1985 and has over 25 years of post
qualification experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a Bachelor of
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1982 and a Master of
Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region appointed Mr. Huang as a Justice of the
Peace.

Mr. Huang serves as a member of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority’s Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, a member of the
Hospital Authority and as a director of the Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited. He is also the Chairman of the Board of
Advisors of Radio Television Hong Kong. In the education sector,
Mr. Huang serves as a Council Member of the University of Hong
Kong. He was President of the Law Society of Hong Kong from
2007 to 2009.

Mr. Huang is an independent non-executive director, the
Remuneration Committee chairman and Nomination Committee
member of International Housewares Retail Company Limited, a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

[ &% BA

BEAT=ZER B2EEAFNARBHESRD
BABYFYTES - RAXRAESSFMHE
EEIERESEREEEEHE -

BAERANEAFEAMEASHER SRS
T8y - BEERRTREMAEEE=1TF

2B WERNSMERET RSB TIE -
=AL
Kt

BFEL+0s  R-ZF-—=5+—-RBZREAR
KRR ZBIUFHTES - RRADAEERS
ERREERETEFHNEEE 2HE -

BAL  RUXZORBEBRQLA  BH—B
EBREMTHEEENEBEREBA-EL
ER-ANAF=ZARREBEERENR
HHEXIHEEBA-+AFER -BLEER
—WNZFEEXEREBRE  FEEREELTE

ﬁ’ﬁ%: AEW E%¢Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
T2y -

R-ZRZZF . EABRTHRERFZEEL
ERRFHL

BEREBEACREERIEESHHNEES
ZE BREREERREREBREESE
RAGESE - WA ABBREAEBZE®E
F-AERBIHE BEAEBEBARERBEEZS

EZE KR -BERLEEZ-BENFAREE
REMEER
BEALERBERXETERRAT  —HERE

BERGMBERARN LM Z AR ZBLIEHT
Ex - FHEEESTERREEEEHE °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CGP Code”), which is based on the Corporate Governance
Code (the “HKEx Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous efforts are
made to review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments
in best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code
for the year ended 30 June 2014, except where otherwise
stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated
by the HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant
provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code
of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 51.
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Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance EETEE KREXEREEE
During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting RAFEER  HETOXEEEEER XK
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the BARE - AR ESNAFENHEEESSE
board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out EREAE2HBHENTR
in the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EEEE; BEXE
BRE ERE
Name of Director EENE BITERRE BITERRY
Chairman: x5E :
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai /L 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEESEEE
Mr. Joseph LEUNG RZEEE 4/4 1/1
Non-Executive Directors: ERTEE :
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze ELTEL 4/4 1/1
Mr. TAN Lim Heng PR K B S 4 4/4 1/1
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEREE 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BiIFEHITESE :
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement EEELEE 2/2 1/1
(Note 1) (Btat 1)
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUEEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. AU Chee Ming BB & 4/4 1/1
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson BEMASLE 2/2 0/0
(Note 2) (ffzF2)  (Note 3) (Bt 3)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

(continued)

Notes:

(1) Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (“Mr. LO”) retired as an Independent
Non-executive Director after the conclusion of 2013 annual
general meeting held on 20 November 2013 (2013 AGM”). Two
Board meetings were held during the period from 1 July 2013 up
to the conclusion of 2013 AGM (date of retirement of Mr. LO).

(2) Mr. HUANG Lester Garson (“Mr. HUANG”) was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from the
conclusion of 2013 AGM. Two Board meetings were held during
the term of office of Mr. HUANG (after the conclusion of 2013
AGM up to 30 June 2014).

(3) No general meeting was held during the term of office of Mr.
HUANG.

Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are
to review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and to ensure that adequate internal control systems
and management information systems are in place, including
being in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of
applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to
create value for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company
has adequate management to achieve the Company’s strategic
objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board (continued)

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable
request, independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, if any.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) for the
year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at
the date of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs
continue to be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board
The family relationships among the members of the Board are

disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 29 to 32 of this
annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEx Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains

informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and
(i) on-going training and professional development programme
for directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, all directors of the
Company namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph LEUNG,
WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kwong Chi, Clement (retired on 20
November 2013), TAN Lim Heng, TSANG Cho Tai, LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony, AU Chee Ming and HUANG Lester Garson (was
appointed on 20 November 2013), received regular briefings and
updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk management
and corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes
to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group were
provided to the directors. They also attended regulatory update
sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
record pursuant to the CGP Code.
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Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD”) are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. Joseph LEUNG is the
GMD of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and
effective functioning. The GMD is responsible for the vision and
strategic direction of the Group, implementing the policies and
decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit Committee and
the Board Nomination Committee were in place for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference, approved by the
Board, which set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms
of reference now being posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are
INEDs. The list of the chairman and members of each board
committee is set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”)

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC is to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management, as
well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC is
accessible on the Company’s website.

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the HKEx Code to determine, with delegated
responsibility and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BRC from 1 July 2013 to conclusion
of the 2013 AGM, the date of his retirement), AU Chee Ming
(re-designed as Chairman of the BRC, with effect from the
conclusion of the 2013 AGM) , KWEK Leng Hai and HUANG
Lester Garson (was appointed with effect from the conclusion
of the 2013 AGM). Mr. AU Chee Ming and Mr. HUANG Lester
Garson are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is
the Chairman of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued) EEEEE )

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) (continued) EETHNEEE((EEENEE ) (&)

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual ARE

ER - HETMAEEEHZEESR -

attendance of each member was as follows: BRIREHEZEREINMT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director BEEng BITERAE
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement BELKE 2/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming B % 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai PLFEE 2/2
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson BERMALE 0/0
(Note) (Ktat)
Note: st -
No BRC meeting was held during the term of office of Mr. HUANG. BEEENEAEPEREETESEMESER -
Work done during the year REEETHEZIIE

— recommended to the Board the directors’ fees for the -
year ended 30 June 2014 for proposing to shareholders
for approval;

— approved the discretionary bonuses for executive directors -
and senior management for the year ended 30 June 2014;

— reviewed the remuneration packages of executive -
directors and senior management for the year 2014;

— reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme; and -

— reviewed its terms of reference and the remuneration -
policy for directors and senior management.
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) (continued)
Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive directors and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which
are reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry
practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2014 are provided in note 11 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”)

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and function of the BNC is to make
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the independence of
independent non-executive directors, the suitability of directors
who will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training
and development programme. Detailed terms of reference of the
BNC is accessible on the Company’s website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming. Mr. LO Kai Yiu
and Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC?”) (continued)

During the year, one BNC meeting was held, the BNC had also
met after the financial year end to discuss/review the Company’s
matters for the year ended 30 June 2014. The individual

attendance of each member is as follows:

EEEXEET

EEEREEEE(REZEEE ) (@)
RAEER HBFT-RREZESEE R

BEEEYRAMBFERERBTERLR
W/ BRARARBE-T-—NFEANA=ZTHL
FEZEH - BRREHE ZEREINNT -

Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

BRE,

Name of Director EEiE 5\'5'_“3%75'\&
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) SRS/ LE(FE) 11
Mr. LO Kai Yu, Anthony ERUBEE 11
Mr. AU Chee Ming B . 1/1

Work done during the year

— reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board —
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge,
professional experience, competences, length of service,
and the balance between executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) and is of the view

REFEZTHZI;E

MNESE2RBE RAERZ (B
FBERRMER - F&  XEREEE
=Rk HRE - AW HELR - B
B RBEBURIAT - FATRBYL
FUTESH2TE) ARRESS
ZEREEBEEMZ Tt 2 RERE

that there is an appropriate and diverse mix of skills and B,

experience;

— reviewed the independence of independent non- -
executive directors of the Company and confirmed that

BRADTBIFATES 2B LM
VHEAZREUFAITESYEEY

all independent non-executive directors are considered

independent;

— reviewed the profile and participation in the Company’s —
affairs of directors who will stand for re-election at 2014
annual general meeting and confirmed that all those

directors are suitable to stand for re-election;

— reviewed the continuous training and development —
programs undertaken by directors and confirmed that an

appropriate program is in place; and

- reviewed its terms of reference and the board diversity -

policy of the Company.
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC?”) (continued)
Board diversity

During the year, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy
formulating a policy concerning board diversity, monitoring
the implementation of such policy and to review the same,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
skills, knowledge, professional experience and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The BNC
will review this policy to ensure its effectiveness and discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC?”)

The Company established the BAC on 29 December 1998
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its
authority and duties.

The BAC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control. The BAC meets with the Company’s external
and internal auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programmes, the results of their examinations as well as
their evaluations of the system of internal control. It also reviews
directors’ interests in contracts and connected transactions.
The BAC reviews the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements and the auditors’ report thereon and submits its
views to the Board. Detailed terms of reference of the BAC is
accessible on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continueq)

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) (continued)
For the year, the BAC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BAC from 1 July 2013 to conclusion
of the 2013 AGM, the date of his retirement), LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony (re-designed as Chairman of the BAC, with effect from
the conclusion of the 2013 AGM), TSANG Cho Tai and HUANG
Lester Garson (was appointed with effect from the conclusion of
the 2013 AGM). Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and Mr. HUANG Lester

Garson are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. TSANG Cho Tai is
the non-executive director of the Company.

EEEGRESE

EEEXEET

EFEBRRESE((EXRESE (@)
RAFER  BREES EEfﬁFqsuﬁfE(EE:g
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During the year, six BAC meetings were held. The individual RAEFER  HBITAREREZESEE o @
attendance of each member was as follows: AIRNEHEZBREINNT ¢

Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
Name of Director EENS BITERAH
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement BELSKE 3/3
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBEE 6/6
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEREE 6/6
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson EEMALE 3/3

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BAC

during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the

Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk

management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results

of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting

policies;

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

THRABERZEERAFEZTERER

- BETKERANEERGCXREBEER
RRBATHREREN

WLETB A

-  EBRFKEzGEUBRENRESE

— EHNSRERZINERBMRES

- BENAREETRERERE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &;8R&EE

Board Committees (continueq)
Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) (continued)

- reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts;

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee;

— reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes;
and

— reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the
year. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 73 to 74 of
this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year, the external auditors of the Group charged
approximately HK$1.8 million for annual audit service and
approximately HK$1.2 million for tax and other services.
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Internal Control

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its
business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework
for the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC, assisted
by the Group Internal Audit Department:

— ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the
Group are promptly identified by management;

— assesses the adequacy of action plans and control
systems developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.
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Internal Control continueg)

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.

In the joint venture, the Board nominates representatives to
sit as directors and take a proactive stance in assessing the
performance of the entity with the goal of safeguarding the
investment of the Group. Where practical, the Group may
request functional, financial and operating information as well
as assurance that such information have been prepared in
accordance with reporting standards and have been derived
from control environments acceptable to the Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set out
in the CGP Code.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the

same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

(a)

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
(HEGM”)

Subject to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“New Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”), the Directors shall on
the requisition of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholder(s) having a right to vote
at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include
the text of a resolutions that may properly be moved
and is/are intended to be moved at the meeting. The
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and
may consist of several documents in like form.

Directors must call an EGM within 21 days after the
date on which they become subject to the aforesaid
requirement and the meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the EGM. If the requests received by the Company identify
a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at the EGM, the notice of the resolution will
be included in the notice of EGM and may be dealt with in
the EGM. The Shareholders who requested the EGM, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an
EGM, if Directors do not do so as aforesaid, but any EGM
so convened for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call an EGM.
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Shareholders’ nghts (continued)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at general meetings

(i)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are as
follows:

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at
least seven days and that the period for lodgment
of the notices shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to
be put forward at a general meeting

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
(*AGM”) if they —

— represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

— at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which
will be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall
be held pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required.
Shareholders shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy
forms relating to the EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general
meetings are in place for shareholders who are unable to attend
the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines
of the Company, which are available on the Company website,
in order to enable them to make any query in respect of the
Company or to make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited at Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp
Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company website www.lamsoon.com. Information on the
Company website is updated on a regular basis.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse
the Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 181 to
183.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 181
to 183.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2014 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 75 to
183.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Wednesday, 26 November 2014 a final dividend of HK$0.13
per share. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.08
per share paid on Wednesday, 26 March 2014, will amount to a
total dividend of HK$0.21 per share for the year (2013: interim
dividend of HK$0.06, final dividend of HK$0.12 per share).
Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be
payable on Thursday, 11 December 2014 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on Thursday, 4
December 2014.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 November 2014 to Wednesday, 26 November 2014
(both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order for the shareholders to be eligible
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrars and Transfer Office — Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited (“HKMS”) at Units 1607-8, 16th Floor,
Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 21 November 2014 for
registration.

The Register of Members of the Company will also be closed
from Wednesday, 3 December 2014 to Thursday, 4 December
2014 (both days inclusive) during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with HKMS, not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Tuesday, 2 December 2014 for registration.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
These movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount
standing to the share premium account in share capital as from
3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11
to the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, as part of the

transition to the no-par value regime.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 32 to the financial statements.
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Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 17
to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Joseph, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*

LO Kwong Chi, Clement’

— retired as Independent Non-executive Director after the
conclusion of 2013 annual general meeting held on 20
November 2013 (the “2013 AGM”)

TAN Lim Heng”

TSANG Cho Tai*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony”

AU Chee Ming"

HUANG Lester Garson, J.P.*

— appointed on 20 November 2013 after the conclusion of the
2013 AGM

*  Non-executive director

*k

Executive director
Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles
of association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices of the Company, Messrs. Joseph LEUNG,
WHANG Sun Tze and AU Chee Ming shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”).

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company’s articles
of association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices of the Company, Mr. Huang Lester Garson
shall retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited
(*GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (*GOMC”) on 30 June 2011 for
provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service Provider”)
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which include, among
other things, overview of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines, treasury
and risk management, key managerial recruitment and retention,
productivity and quality programmes and other operating
practices and procedures as well as planning and development

of management information systems (the “Services”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement comprise
a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Service Providers and
the Company) and an annual fee (the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3
percent of the annual profits before tax of the Company and the
subsidiaries as shown in the audited profit and loss accounts for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments.
The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee
and the total amount of any fees paid or payable by the Group to
any Hong Leong Group Company for Services of a similar nature
as the services are subject to an annual cap of HK$22 million
(the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30
June 2014.

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM?”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates
of a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to be
invested in shareholding in the Company. The transactions under
the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement

during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement for
the year were entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms or better; and

— according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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Connected Transactions (continueq)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$5,876,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$22 million as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2011.

New master services agreement was entered into by the
Company with GGMC and GOMC on 2 July 2014 for a term of
three financial years from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017.

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 23 May
2003 as amended and approved by the shareholders on 18 April
2006 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”) expired on 23 May 2013.
A new Executive Share Option Scheme (“ESOS 2013”) was
approved by the shareholders on 23 April 2013 and took effect
from 25 April 2013. The ESOS 2013 provides for the satisfaction
of the exercise of options through issue of new shares of the
Company and/or the transfer of existing issued shares of the

Company (“Existing Shares”) or a combination of both.

A trust for the 2003 Share Option Scheme (the “Trust”) has
been established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the Trust
(the “Trustee”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, for the
purpose of acquiring and disposing of shares or other securities
or financial instruments in relation to the shares in order to
discharge the Trustee’s obligation in respect of the Trust. The
Trustee, will at the direction of the Board from time to time,
transfer shares to option holders to satisfy the exercise of the
options. The Group had provided and will provide finances to
the Trust from time to time to enable the Trust to acquire such
shares.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Trust Deed for the 2003 Share Option Scheme was then
amended such that the Trustee may hold the shares of the
Company for the purpose of both the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and the ESOS 2013 (the “Schemes”). The Trust, whose
beneficiaries include eligible participants of the Schemes who
may be directors and chief executive of the Group, is deemed to

be a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The grant of options to the directors and chief executive of the
Group (who are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme and
the provision of finances to the Trust from time to time constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the year
and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the 2003 Share Option

Scheme for the year; and

2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of
the finances provided by the Group for the purchase
of Existing Shares was approximately HK$22,382,000
which did not exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2006. The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms or better; and

— according to the agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master services
agreement and provision of finances to the Trust mentioned
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the
section of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract
concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered
into or subsisted during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2014, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(A) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The interests of Mr. Joseph LEUNG represent the
interests in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of the
share options granted by the Company exercisable within
a period of up to 30 months following the notification
of entitlement to confirm the vesting and the number
of options exercisable in accordance with the terms
of grants. The granting of share options for 2,570,000
ordinary shares were approved by the shareholders at the
2013 annual general meeting of the Company as required
under the Listing Rules and the terms of Executive Share
Option Scheme 2013.

The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and
869 ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR
Investment Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang &
Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in
SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.
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59.52% Z 1D HER ©

44 o
(B) Associated corporations (B) #HEHEAM

Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying {GHEEEE
associated Nature of shares held BRTEER
corporation Name of director interest BERG Total Pk o 25
BB 2R EENE e HERGEE @t Bl
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%

(Malaysia) Berhad s A
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%

EEEEERLA LISy A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%

B R A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%

=EiES A
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SENRKG - HERKRD RE
HF 2R =)

¢,

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

—T-MEFH @IR(FE)BRAA

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #HEfEE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 51EEEE
associated Nature of shares held BETLER
corporation Name of director interest BERKR/ Total Pl ok 14
R EE 2 B HanE HERGEE @t AL
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BRI EERAR BIEyS EPN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BLHE Rik
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
B E A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 357,333 357,333 0.03%
ZEES A
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 4,750,000 4,750,000 0.26%
EIEy S {EPN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
) Rik
Hong Leong Financial Group ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Berhad B! A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BEE Rik
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
B E {EPN
Hong Leong Industries Berhad  KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
B A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
ELE E
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENkM - HERBRE
Underlying Shares and Debentures H2Z#% @)
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(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #HEfEE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying {G1EEEE
associated Nature of shares held ERTLER
corporation Name of director interest BERKR/ Total Pk id ol
HEEEEE EEnz e HERGBEE @zt Bk
Guocoland (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
28 A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
BRA & (EPN
Hume Industries (Malaysia) WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Sdn Bhd - fakil Rik
GuocoLeisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,100,000 1,100,000 0.08%
BRpk & EPN
Malaysian Pacific Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Berhad HSE A
The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
#28 (5PN
TAN Lim Heng Personal 152,882 152,882 0.04%
B 2L A
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Directors’

Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

Associated corporations (continued)

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above
were long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
or its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options

(A)

2003 Share Option Scheme

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the
shareholders on 23 May 2003 as amended and approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
on 18 April 2006 (“Date of Approval”). The amendment to
the rules of the 2003 Share Option Scheme on the Date of
Approval by the shareholders was to, among other, allow
grant of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer
of existing shares by the Trust of the Company. During the
year, the 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 23 May
2013 and a new Executive Share Option Scheme 2013
(the “ESOS 2013”) was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 23 April 2013 and took effect on 25 April 2013. Upon
expiration of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no further
option can be granted under 2003 Share Option Scheme,
but all options granted thereunder will remain exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. Summary of details of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is set out below:

4,

SENRKG - HERKRD RE
HFZIER =)

d

1HENEE (&)

FrER Ll (A) R (B)BRATIR B < 25 B
ABEALARAEAREIE R ER
MR D ©

BRAXFREEN  BETAAAFTE
ERARAHEEMEEEZERER
ZRAEHRPEXNVBZER)EBEEAR
BESRPERGIEL2IFREMR 2
ﬁ%%%¢ﬁﬁ2&ﬁﬁﬁ@&$¢z
KERM  HERORESRRERE
:rﬂﬂﬁi%ﬂé?ﬂii}_]EEE?"ﬁﬁ;ZﬁEﬁa=

R 153 58 R HE

(A)

2003 R EB1ESTEl

2003RBRENENR_-_ZFZE=FRA
THZHERREARAR-ZZERGFN
BTNBTHEB S DRBRERER X
SLEERRIESTT - RILEBR » 3
2003 ERTER N 2 ZIHMBEITCE
BRERzHE (HPEFE)ETFRESR
RATRFBITROR REBHAKAF
FEREZEREROIIABE AEEE
A 2003 RBETEENR =_Z—=F1
BZ+=HE®R HI-ZT—=F1THA
ERMARBREE (2013 A RBREL
BER=-E—=FNA-+=HER
RitgE WR-FE—=FWA=-+EHHAH
43 0 2003 REB R EIRERE R T
BREERERE ERZFETREZAFR
BERBREKATIRIE200372

2IERE AT 2R
B4 1T - 2003 SR BB AR Bl 2 sE 15
T

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BRA
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Share Optl ONS (continued)

(A)

2003 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to
motivate the employees and directors of the Group
and the employees of associated companies (“Eligible
Employee”) and to allow them to participate in the growth
of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of ordinary
shares of the Company in issue at the Date of Approval of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement
for any Eligible Employee in respect of the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share
option will be determined by the directors upon the grant
of share option. It will not be less than the greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such a share option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a
business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share (Note).

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the share option within 21 days inclusive

of, and from the date of making such offer.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 23 May 20183.

Note:

The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect
from 3 March 2014 pursuant to the New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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2003 :RRBHEETEI (&)

2003 R BRI EEHBEEANZES
NEFURBBEIEZ2EE(SERE
B)) EREVSEAQNFZERE -

RIBE2003ABREAEATTFREZME
RBRETER > TRHITR/REBH
EREEIROAY EHXFBEBYH
2003 RSB E B BAQTE BT
LZERBMDEBEZ10% - AMEFM+ =&
PHBIAEEREERTHEERER
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Share Options (continueq)

(A)

2003 Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 1 July 20183, there were 6,450,000 outstanding
options pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Details of the said share options are as follows:

Bz i SR EEHE &)

2003 :2HEHERT 21 (&)
RZE—=F+tHA—H  RIE2003:7
BETE MRTEZRERHE A

6,450,000 °

ZBRORBREFFEOT

Number of share options

i REEtERE
As at Lapsed As at

1 July 2013 during 30 June 2014 Exercise price

Date of grant Grantees RZB-=%f theyear MRZF—-MEF per share

i =R ERA tA-B REERKH ~A=+H BRITERE

HK$

B
26 August 2010 Employees of the Group 6,450,000 1,800,000 4,650,000 6.86  Note
ik

Note: BrEE -

The vesting of the options is subject to fulfilment of certain
prescribed performance targets and contribution criteria being
met by the grantees during the performance periods for the
financial years 2010/2011 to 2013/2014. At the end of the
relevant performance period, the Board Remuneration Committee
of the Company shall determine at its discretion, the extent of
achievement of the performance targets and contribution criteria
set out for that period, and decide on the vesting of the options
and the number of shares comprised in the vested options.
Thereafter, the grantees shall be notified of the vesting of the
options (“Date of Notification”) and shall have an exercise period
of up to 30 months following the Date of Notification to exercise
the vested options in accordance with the terms of the grant.

During the year, no options were granted pursuant to
2003 Share Option Scheme and 1,800,000 options
granted to employees were lapsed. Save as disclosed
herein, no other options were vested, exercised or
cancelled during the year. Accordingly, the number of
outstanding options was 4,650,000 at 30 June 2014.

ABEDRBEE-—T-FT /T ——F
E_E——/—g MEBBEE 2 KRR
BRAERAZRE THRHRREERER
AEE - NEBERRUBERE  EBEH
HEESERZERZPBAMTER ZAERR
BERERM REABERBERCEBER
BEGESZROHUE - BERABEBNTA
SEHHEERABEZRE  XIRBANE
AMEF=TEANTESRR  RERT2
AT G 2 FRBE -

RAFER  RIBE2003DBEET 2L
ERLHRBEE BETFEEM1,800,000
BRABEC KN - RAXFIREEN
RAFEATEHLBIBEERIR
B ATERECE - Bt - R=ZZ-F
NA=ZTH  RTEZRBEHES
4,650,000 °

—OFEFR MIR(FE)ERAA
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Share Options (continueq)

(B)

ESOS 2013

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 23
April 2013 and took effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption
Date”). Summary of details of the ESOS 2013 is set out
below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or
director of the Group, who is eligible to participate
in the ESOS 2013 (“Eligible Executives”) with
those of the Shareholders and encourage Eligible
Executives to assume greater responsibility for the
performance of the business that they manage;

(if) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic
business objectives;

(ifi) to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake
in the success of the Group; and

(iv) to make the total compensation package more
competitive in order to attract, retain and motivate

high caliber executives.

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person
must be at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has
been confirmed in service; or

(if) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and
identify suitable Eligible Executives to be offered options.
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Share Optl ONS (continued)

(B)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued and/
or transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the ESOS 2013 and any other share
option scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Company’s total number of shares in issue at the
Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in
respect of the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1% of
the Company’s total number of shares in issue.

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise
price of an option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the
exercise price so fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day;
and (c) the nominal value of a share (Note).

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the share option within 30 days (or such
longer period of time as may be permitted by the Board at
its discretion) from the date of making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10

years commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note:

The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect
from 3 March 2014 pursuant to the New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Bz i SR EEHE &)

(B)

2013 ix ¥y =B REtERT 8l ()

RIFE2013R D RBETEIHE MR A
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Share Options (continueq)

(B)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

As at 1 July 2013, there were 14,600,000 outstanding

options pursuant to the ESOS 2013.

Details of the said options are as follows:

B {5 SR BEHE )

(B)

2013 By sRREHEST &l (&)

RZE—Z=F+tHA—H RE2013K
DRBRETE > MARITHEZRBEEZE
£ 14,600,000

ZRORBEFBOT

Number of share options

i REEtEE R
As at Lapsed As at Exercise
1 July 2013 during 30 June 2014 price per
Date of grant Grantees RZF-=%f the year HRZE—-MNE share Notes
BHBEH ERA tA-B REASKH ~A=+H BRITERE M7
HK$
B
28 June 2013 LEUNG Joseph (Group 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 462 1&2
—E-=FXAZ+NH Managing Director)
RuMLE  REES
mm
28 June 2013 Other Eligible Executives 9,600,000 - 9,600,000 4.62 1
“Z-ZEXAZHN\R HtAERTHRAR
Total
me. 14,600,000 14,600,000
Notes: Vorzan
1. The vesting of the options is subject to the achievement 1. EEREENRER-_ZE——F+tA
of the prescribed financial and performance targets and —HBE=ZZE—NUEAA=+tHEZ
the contribution criteria to be met by the grantees for E-MNE+tA—RBE=-_ZE—+tEXA
the financial periods from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2014 S+ HVREEZRBEHBAEREA
and from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017. At the end of the BEKRCESZNVEERREERS
relevant performance period, the Board Remuneration BREEXE - NERRIFEIRI &R -
Committee of the Company shall determine, at its EECSFMEESEEZEZERBAMR
discretion, the extent of achievement of the financial and EREETRMETEEERSE -
performance targets and contribution criteria set out for ARERBRZEBERCEBIBES
that period, and decide on the vesting of the options and EZRNEE - ERAKEBNEE
the number of shares comprised in the vested options. RBECZHEE WA BRABERE
Thereafter, the grantees shall be notified of the vesting B =ZTEBEATHFECREENRE
of the options and shall be able to exercise the vested fE o
options within an exercise period of up to 30 months
following the vesting of the options.
2. Mr. LEUNG Joseph is an option holder under Rule 2. REZBEER EHHEBE7.07(0i)F

17.07(ii) of the Listing Rules.
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Share Options (continueq)

(B)

ESOS 2013 (continued)

During the year, no options were granted pursuant to the
ESOS 2013. Save as disclosed herein, no other options
were vested, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the
ESOS 2013 during the year. Accordingly, the number of

outstanding options was 14,600,000 at 30 June 2014.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad maintain share
option schemes or plans which subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year, under which
eligible directors of the Company may be granted share
options for acquisition of shares of respective companies
concerned. No person, being a director of the Company
during the year, held shares acquired in pursuance of
certain aforesaid share option schemes or plans.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Bz i SR EEHE &)

(B)

2013 ix ¥y =B REtERT 8l ()

MAEER  RIE2013R D RBTE
I BT R o BRASCATIR T E I
MAEER FE2013R D RBEE
T TEHEMAEEEERARE - 17
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2014, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

FERRZFRER

REZZ-NEAB=1TH REBHZRPERK
PIE 336N EMBR 2 ELBMPFAE - T3
RER(BR EX AR BDESAFEARR 2R
DRBBRD P ZXRRG RAAERD 2 #H)
FEARARDFBERAT 2R BRMD KA

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of AR 2
the SFO:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held interest
BAZRGEE #EzmZBHa59t
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) 154,327,659 63.42%
QUEK Leng Chan 154,327,659 63.42%
Elisges
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 154,327,659 63.42%
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 164,327,659 63.42%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 154,327,659 63.42%
KWEK Leng Kee 154,327,659 63.42%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

(continued)

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by GuoLine International Limited (“GIL”); (i) 4,994,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000
underlying shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by
Oceanease Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuolLine Capital Assets Limited
(“GCA”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HLCM.
Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity
Assets Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco
Group Limited (“GGL”). GGL was 71.88% owned by GuoLine Overseas
Limited (“GOL”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA.
By virtue of Section 316(2) of the SFO, HLCM was 49.27% owned by
Mr. QUEK Leng Chan as to 2.424% under his personal name, 46.534%
via HLH which was wholly-owned by him and 0.311% via Newton
(L) Limited. Newton (L) Limited was wholly-owned by Newton Capital
Group Limited which was 2.424% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan and
46.534% owned by HLH. HLIH held 34.69% interest in HLCM. Mr. KWEK
Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59%
interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions
in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors
of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, the Company did not redeem any of its listed
shares. Neither did the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed shares.

FERFEZHFRIER =

waz -

ZREZSETE () Guoline International Limited ([GIL )
EARA AT 140,008,659 REBR 2 #E% ; (i) &
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# ; R (i) Oceanease Limited BB EAMIE FHETE
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Update on Director’s Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information on the Company’s director is set out below:

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony did not seek for re-election to the
board at the annual general meeting of Mecox Lane Limited, a
company listed on Nasdaqg in the USA. Mr. Lo ceased to be an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Mecox Lane Limited on 5 June 2014.

Auditors

KPMG were first appointed as auditors of the Company in 2012
upon the retirement of PKF.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 75 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2014, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 30 June 2014 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 August 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z&8li#sR

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE 201496 530 HILFE
2013
—E—=
Note HK$’000
et BT
Turnover —E 2L 7 4,117,049 3,617,563
Cost of sales SHERA (3,435,367) (3,041,447)
Gross profit EF 681,682 576,116
Other revenue and other net income HbUg A & EfhF Uz 8 20,064 57,770
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEH (373,056) (308,927)
Administrative expenses THEHR (147,740) (144,500)
Other operating expenses Hihk&E & A = (93)
Operating profit R R 180,950 180,366
Finance costs SN 9 (4,799) (5,550)
Share of loss of a joint venture EiEEE N TMEIE 21 (269) (9,158)
Profit before taxation FRB A% A 10 175,882 165,658
Taxation BE 12(b) (35,119) (34,543)
Profit for the year R B F 140,763 131,115
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the KATRR
Company 14 140,763 131,115
Non-controlling interests FIZERER - =
Profit for the year IR B F 140,763 131,115
Earnings per share (HK$) sRERNCET)
Basic LN 16 0.59 0.55
Diluted e 16 0.58 0.55

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders

of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out

in note 15.

FIREB4E 183 A2 B EMERSNMBIRER 2
— B AFERNARARRRE 25F15E5
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76

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #4842 EKE %R

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE 201446 530 HILFE
2013
—F2—=
HK$’000
BT T
Profitfor theyear . AFFEWNM 140763 .. 131,115
Other comprehensive income for the  AEEHME2EUNE @ BFRE :
year, net of nil tax:
ltems that may be reclassified HENEH 7 EEBEE2EE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of available-for- AHHENTKEEAAEE
sale financial assets 2B (7) —
Exchange differences on translation FE BN ER B TS IRk ™
of financial statements of foreign EEXCENELE
operations (18,984) 30,691
Other comprehensive income for the  AREEHME2EINE @ BREEE
e e (18991) 380,691
Total comprehensive income for AEELHEWNEERE  BREE
the year, net of tax 121,772 161,806
Attributable to: HER
Equity shareholders of the Company ¥ NUNET) S 121,772 161,806
Non-controlling interests FERER - =
Total comprehensive income for AEEZEBRLEEE
the year 121,772 161,806

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION S8k AR

At 30 June 2014
R2014466 530 A
2013
—E-=F
Note HK$’000
o BEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 17(a) 664,101 691,880
Leasehold land HELTH 18 85,780 89,357
Intangible assets mILEE 19 2,676 2,995
Interest in a joint venture BENTER 21 43,241 43,510
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENTHRERE 22 186 193
Deferred tax assets BEERBEE 13(a) 7 50
Other non-current assets HMEREEE 5,152 -
e . 801,143 ... 827,985
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 23(a) 624,194 558,053
Debtors, deposits and FEBERR - Re RFEM
prepayments 24 401,607 378,915
Tax recoverable JE W 5t 3R 12(e) 2,421 3,098
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEeEH 25 642,704 490,217
. 1670926 1,430,283
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAR
Bank loans RITER 26 269,000 269,000
Creditors, deposits received BHERR - EWEER
and accruals EsTER 27 436,599 377,398
Amount due to a joint venture ENEEARE 21 42,705 42,771
Tax payable FEASBE TR 12(e) 15,582 23,188
Other current liabilities HivRE&E 28 212 154
e 764008 @000 712,511
NETCURRENTASSETS  #xb@& 06828 nraTe
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ~ @EEREHERK
LIABILITIES 1,707,971 1,545,757

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BERAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION S8k AR

At 30 June 2014
R20144%6530H
2013
—E-=F
Note HK$’000
HaF BEF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Bank loans RITER 26 84,000 =
Other non-current liabilities HtEREEE 29 621 52
e 4621 0 52
NET ASSETS BEE 1,623,350 1,545,705
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Ee Rt
Share capital: nominal value BA  ROEE - 243,354
Share premium R =E - 429,423
Share capital and share premium IR A | R AD B 30(a) 672,777 672,777
Other reserves Hitf#E 939,722 862,077
Total equity attributable to equity RATIRREGES
shareholders of the Company 1,612,499 1,534,854
Non-controlling interests IR RS 10,851 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY LS4 1,623,350 1,545,705

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 August 2014.

LEUNG Joseph 2Zf#
DIRECTOR EFE

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.

RIS -

WHANG Sun Tze =Lt1#
DIRECTOR EE

— &4 o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BfFik R &

At 30 June 2014
R2014%6 530 H
2013
—E—=F
Note HK$’000
ez BETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Fixed assets EEEE 17(b) 1,098 1,420
Investments in subsidiaries B TR 20 1,255,387 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURLFH B 2 BIFRIE 20 1,423,557 1,283,699
Available-for-sale financial assets AR HENTKEE 22 9 16
ettt 2,680,051 2,538,931
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Debtors, deposits and EWERR - ZE& Rk
prepayments AR 24 158 243
Amount due from a joint venture FEkEE NRRIE 21 182 114
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEH 25 556 800
I 8% . asr
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAR
Creditors, deposits received BAERR - EWiRe
_ andeeonel NEsRA . o wiml’ 68
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAR (6,877) (10,431)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT @EEERAEHER
LIABILITIES 2,673,174 2,528,500
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries EMAHBARE 20 1,764,049 1,555,278
NET ASSETS FRE 909,125 973,222
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERiEE
Share capital: nominal value BA  ROEE - 243,354
Share premium B 1318 - 429,423
Share capital and share premium BRAR KRG &E 30(a) 672,777 672,777
Other reserves Hoib e 32 236,348 300,445
TOTAL EQUITY R4 909,125 973,222

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 August 2014.

LEUNG Joseph 2Zf#

ROAESEN-Z-—NFNA+NBHRER

FBHFIEE o

WHANG Sun Tze =Lt#

DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial FIREE84 E 183 E 2 HEMFT AR KEIREK 2
statements. —EB 1D ©

—T-MEFH @IR(FE)BRAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY S48 ES#EHR

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

BENEATRE
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  General Revenue controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total interests
BIRkb
hE  ARE Rt
K+ RbEE ERRE EERE  SRRE JBERRE ERRE  -REE LGRS At FaRER
Note HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
W EETT  BEFL BEFT BT BEFT EETL BEFT EETT BEFT BT
At 1 July 2013 R-F-z£tR-A 243354 429423 23739 1 (2238 - 128319 50,000 682,400 1,534,854 10,851 1,545,705
Profit for the year REERR - - - - - - - - 140763 140,763 - 140,763
Total other comprehensive AEEEM2ANE
income for the year a5 - - - U} - - (18,984 - - (18991) - (18091)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2FUHAE
the year - - - m - e - 0763 12172 -
Equity settled share-based BRRAGENIRE
transactions RERNRA 31 - - - - - 354 - - - 354 - 354
Transfer from revenue reserne.  FIMEEHBERE
10 surplus reserve BhERE - - 43502 = = = = - (48502) = = -
2012113 inal dhicend approved  EEREEA=F-2/
and paid -ZERHRE 15(b) - - - - - - - - (28603  (28,603) - (28,603
Curent year interim dvidend ~ EERRRAKER
declared and paid BERE 1508) - - - - - - - - (19068  (19,068) - (19,068)
Transition to no-par value R-%-BE=R=A
regime on 3 March 2014 BEZEAESE S0 420428 (420423) - - - - - - - - - -
7777777777777777777777777777777777 429423 (429,423 48,502 - - 3,544 - - (9,173  (44,127) - (44127)
At 30 June 2014 R-F-BERR=1H 672,117 - 72,241 6 (22,382 3544 109,335 50,000 726990 1,612,499 10,851 1,623,350

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &4 RS EH%

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE 201496 530 HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BRARLARE
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus  revaluation ESOP option  Exchange  General  Revenue controlling
captal  premium  reseve  reserve  reServe  reSenve  feSeve  feServe reserve Totdl  interests Total
EIRH
ke ABE it
R RREE BREE EfifE  SERE JBRERE ENRE -MEE  UERERE B FERER &
Note  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKB000  HKB'OO0 ~ HKB'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
g BEFr  BEFr EEFn BETn BETn BETn BEFn BEFn BEin BETn BT B
At 1 July 2012 RZZ-ZEtf-A 23364 429423 23739 T (2238 798 97628 50,000 584,656 1407217 10,851 - 71,74j 8068
Profit for the year REERA = - - - - - - - 13115 181,115 - 131115
Total other comprehensive REERM2ANE
income for the year a5 - - - - - - 3061 - - 30691 - 30,691
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2ANEAH
the year - - - - - - 30691 - 131,115 161,806 - 161806
Equity settled share-based BRRAGENIRE
transactions RERHRA 31 - - - - - (799) - - - (798) = (799)
2011112 final dvidend approved ~ EERRZH=E--/
and paid -ZERERE  190) - - - - - - - - (19069 (19,089 - (19,069
Curtent year interim dividend ERRIARER
declared and paid HERE 1508) - - - - - - - - (14300 (14300 - (1430
T . R L N 1 I 1
At 30 June 2013 RZZ-=ERB=1R 23364 429423 23739 T (2238 - 18319 50000 682400 1,534854 10,851 1,545,705

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial FIREB4E 183 HEZ B EMT AR HEREK 2
statements. — &7 o
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating profit

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Write-down of inventories

Fair value loss on derivative financial

instruments
Charge for doubtful debts
Interest income
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net gain on disposal of available-for-

sale financial assets

Gain on disposal of an industrial
property

Charge/(reversal) of equity settled
share-based payment expenses

Net unrealised exchange gain

Change in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Decrease)/increase in amount due
to a joint venture

Increase in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Increase in creditors, deposits
received and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Tax paid outside Hong Kong

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

HEEBHHERE

A RA

S
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FERE
TTESRMTANARE
B8
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Note
KBrat

10
23(b)

10

180,950

62,496
1,401

185
(11,942)
580

(4,058)

3,544

(806)

(74,024)

(66)

(65,021)

58,549

151,788

(632)

(30,319)

120,837

2013
—=-=

HK$°000
BETF T

180,366

60,461
1,652

93
23
(6,467)
1,224
(3,720)
(28,626)
(798)
(18,934)
43,992
5,112

(56,092)

34,520

212,706

(2,205)
(20,538)

189,963



For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING I EFHHIRSHESE

ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchase of fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Net proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal of an
industrial property

NET CASH GENERATED
FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

[EL€)=)
BEEEEE

& A E R B
BEENEREAFRRE
HEBREEENFE
FRIEFEE
HETERYMENFIE

IR

RETEHMRE(FA)

H&F#

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING EIEFHHIRSHE

ACTIVITIES

Net draw down/(repayment) of
bank loans

Increase/(decrease) in obligations
under finance leases

Interest paid

Dividends paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

RITERMRE, GER)

FE

MEHEEAENIEM

(i)
EHFIE
ENRE

REESMFRE (FTR)
H&F#

B&RIRE SHEEEM

FEMHRERFLFHLM

EE RIS

FEXREERFSFHGHR

The notes on pages 84 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.

2013
—F—=

Note HK$’000
Hat BT T
11,942 6,467
(37,780) (59,402)

= 4,050

535 691

32,684 =
7,381 (48,194)
84,000 (78,000)
627 (247)

(4,799) (5,550)

(47,671) (33,371)

32,157 (117,168)

160,375 24,601

490,217 451,117

(7,888) 14,499

642,704 490,217
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIFE20145¥6 530 HILFE

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and

household and institutional cleaning products.

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("Predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance".),
in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of the Hong Kong) ("New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance"), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new/revised
standard and interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period (see note 3).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2014 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(9)); and

— Derivative financial instruments (see note
2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
changed its accounting policy for the costing of
inventories, from first-in, first-out cost formula to
weighted average cost formula. This new method
reflects a more long-term and consistent valuation
of inventory. The adoption of the new policy
had no material effect on the Group’s inventory
balances and cost of sales as reported in the 2013
consolidated financial statements. As such, no prior
year adjustment pursuant to HKAS 8, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors has been made in the financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. The adoption of the new standards
and amendments had no material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

joint venture (see note 2(e)) or an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(l)(i)).

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.
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An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and 2(1)(i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to
be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(l)(ii).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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BE2014F6F30 HILFE

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Costs include attributable
transaction costs.

At the end of each reporting period the fair value of
investment in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in
equity securities that do not have a quoted price
in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(I)). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 2(l)(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(l)(ii)). The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after a fixed
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(l)(ii)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction, capitalised
borrowing costs and exchange differences to
the extent that it is an adjustment to borrowing
costs during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.
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BE2014F6F30 HILFE

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and leasehold 3-25 years
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture and 3-20 years

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(l)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the

Group determines that the arrangement conveys a

right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed

period of time in return for a payment or a series of

payments. Such a determination is made based on

an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement

and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following
exception:

— Land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(l)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases
S0 as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.

(ii)

(iii)
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(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or
are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

= For investment in joint venture
accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(l)
(i). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(l)(ii).
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(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For debtors, deposits and prepayments
and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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(i) Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

(continued)

For available-for-sale equity
securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

fixed assets;

leasehold land;

intangible assets; and

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair values less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BZE20146 530 HILFE

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an

attributable proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(l)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the debtors, deposits and prepayments are stated
at cost less impairment losses for doubtful debts
(see note 2(I)(i))-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

()

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Creditors, deposits received and accruals

Creditors, deposits received and accruals
are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIFE20145¥6 530 HILFE

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the share options will vest.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when
it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination

benefits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax asset also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they related to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separated
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

Annual Report 2014

BRIELERBAN AR REZER
EEREBENREEZAHER
FEESX  BESEREEXN
FELALEEMHOBRTE - &
ERBEEEREBEG TR
oo

FEEREHMREEHEHNERN
EERIEEEMNIREE - RSB
THBAEAEHERBERNUE
BHEBERBEANENELERIBERE
TR - BERRAREHEESN
HERBUER - AIBEBIRET
LAgE [ o

HEIRRKREFFELENBEIITEHR
RN EREREN S EFE

N
0

RERIBEFEHEGRAZE
BHEDMIR  LHTFFIKH -
EMRELEMESHEEESEDS
RASIAEEREETERAE
WG HEERHEERREHREA
& WEFESUATHFERENE
MT » FA D B HEEMRIE
IEFTEHEME :

- AEREHEEHARE:
ARBHAEE T EZF
BEELE  HEAKER
ZEENGEEZEE &



For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 H30 HILFE

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefit is remote.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customer who has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Income from management services
Income from management services is

recognised at the time when the services
are provided.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIFE20145¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies
(continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BZ2014% 6530 HIEFE

(a)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(viii A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close family members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influence by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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3.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations
Issued but Not Yet Effective

for the Annual Accounting Year
Ended 30 June 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new
standard which are not yet effective for the accounting
year ended 30 June 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets BEERE

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
come into operation from the company’s first financial
year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the company’s
financial year which began on 1 July 2014) in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of the expected impact
of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only
affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management makes various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 31 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed
below:

(a) Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value
involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the fixed assets and if the
assessment result differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation
for the year. The details of the fixed assets are
disclosed in note 17.

(b) Impairment of fixed assets and goodwill

Determining whether fixed assets and goodwill
are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the
fixed assets and goodwill have been allocated. The
calculation of value in use requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. If the estimation of value in use is different,
any reversal or further impairment will impact the
profits or losses of the Group. The details of fixed
assets and goodwill are disclosed in notes 17 and
19 respectively.
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(c)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2014, deferred tax assets of
HK$1,589,000 (2013: HK$1,635,000) in relation
to unused tax losses were recognised as set
out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$293,553,000 (2013: HK$301,676,000)
and temporary differences of HK$150,246,000
(2013: HK$158,792,000) arising from impairment
of certain fixed assets and leasehold lands due
to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the future
profits generated are less or more than expected,
a material write down or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the profit or loss for the period in
which such a write down or further recognition
takes place.

(c)
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities and movements
in its own equity share price. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Credit limits are set
for all customers and these are exceeded only
with the approval of senior company officers.
Customers considered to be with credit risk are
traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment by the end of the month following the
month in which sales took place. Regular review
and follow up actions are carried out on overdue
amounts to minimise the Group’s exposure to
credit risk. Collaterals over properties are obtained
from certain customers. An ageing analysis of
the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk in view of
its large number of customers. The Group does
not provide any guarantee which would expose
the Group to credit risk. Further quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from debtors, deposits and
prepayments are set out in note 24.
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as
potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:
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5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. HAEREERAAE

Fair Values (continueq) (4&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HRHELEEZE)
Group
158

2014 013

mt i3 oE-zE
Total More than More than Total More than Morg than
contractual Within fyearbut  2yearshut contractuel Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying ~ undiscounted 1 year or within within Camying  undiscounted 1 year or within witin
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5 years amount cashfow ~on demand 2 years 5 years
AHRRRE  -EARA -Eit ZENE ARATE  -EARA -EiE ZEE
FEE HReREsE gin  BcENR RRENR BEE ReNisEd 980 ESEAR EEENR
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK8 000
Vi Vi Vi Vi Vi EHR B i B B

Bark loans HGEE] 353,000 360,202 212,052 18315 69,635 269,000 269,360 269,360 - -

Creditors and accruals EREAREHER 49,334 9334 934 - - 36256 362,588 362,568 - -

Amount due to ajoint venture EfRELARE 4,105 4,705 4,105 - - o Qm Qm = =

Obligatons under fience leases HERESE 833 83 2 162 459 2 2% 154 5 -

815,872 623,074 134,303 18477 70204 674565 674925 674873 5 =
1 2 0 Company
$48

2014 013

“§-0f It
Total More than More than Total More than More than
contractual Within fyearbut  2years but contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying ~ undiscounted 1 year or within within Camying  undiscounted 1year or within witin
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5 years amount cashflow — ondemand 2years 5 years
AHRRR  -EARA -Eit ZENE AHATE  -EARA -FiE ZENE
FEE RENRLE 380 BoEAR BEENR BEE RSNELE 981 EcEdn ERENA
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK8000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
T EATn AP ERTT BN A i i A i

Creditors and accrugls ENEIRENER 1m 1m 1m - - 11,588 11,568 11,568 - -

The amounts due to subsidiaries amounted to REERMNHBARRIBEABE

HK$1,764,049,000 (2013: HK$1,555,278,000) 1,764,049,000 T(Z&FE— =4 :

have no fixed term of repayment and will not be ¥ 1,555,278,00078) » LLFRIE

settled within one year. REEEERHARTER—FRA
iz -
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5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. BREEBREERAAE

Fair Values (continued) (4)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZEREAE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from REBNFZRERETERBEIRIT
bank loans and bank deposits. BRERITER °
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIERLR
The following table details the interest rate TREVAREHALBER
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s EERADQAFEEHKE
interest earning financial assets and interest EREEGHKABBENR =R
bearing financial liabilities at the end of the B

reporting period:

Group
AKRE
2014 20183
—E—mE —E—=f 121
Effective Effective

interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BRRERE IREME = a3 s MREE
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
BT BT T

Fixed rate financial EEHBEEE
assets/(liabilities): (&f&) :

Time deposits EHER 3.10 330,492 3.92 258,125

Bank loans IRITER 2.96  (100,000) = =
Variable rate FEMBEE

financial assets/ J(EfE) :

(liabilities):

Cash at banks RITIF 1.02 312,212 1.03 232,092

Bank loans RITER 1.26 (253,000) 1.57 (269,000)

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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5. Financial Risk Management and

5. UBEBEERARE

Fair Values (continueq) (4)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FZ=RpE#E)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) (i) FIZERER ()
Company
PN
2014 2013
—FT-NE —E-=fF
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount rate p.a. amount
BERRERNE IREE =TS R E{E
% HK$’000 % HK$’'000
BT BT T
Variable rate FEEMBREE
financial assets
Cash at banks RITER
(Note) (K1) 0.00 556 0.00 800
Note: Effective interest rate of cash at banks is Bat - ERITERNERF
minimal. IR o
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) WEESHT

At 30 June 2014, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 0 to 13
basis points (2013: 5 to 13 basis points) in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and revenue
reserve by approximately HK$321,000
(2013: HK$3,000).
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(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) and other
components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2013.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily

through sales, purchases, deposits, and

borrowings that are denominated in a currency

other than the functional currency of the operations

in which they relate. The currencies giving rise to

this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
Macau Pataca (“MOP”).

(i)
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5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. HEEKREBRAAE
Fair Values (continueq) (&)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E%REEE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) REZIMNER R
The following table details the Group’s TRITEBAREHL
exposure at the end of the reporting period HUERE AT EEE B 1L
to currency risk arising from recognised HNEBHENCHRREE
assets or liabilities denominated in a KB EASZ ZINERR
currency other than the functional currency EHFEMA DT o RDAFR
of the entity to which they relate. The —E-NMERZE—=F
Company has no exposure to currency risk AB=Z+TBXRENER
as at 30 June 2014 and 2013. B o

Group (Expressed in original currency)
AREIRERHE)
2014 2013
~%-mf %-zf
ORISR E IR 020008 HK$'000 AMB$'000  USD$'000  MOP'000
ERTE ARKTL  ZATh AIETE Wi s e i a

Debtors, depositsand ~ EUERE, » RER

prepayments SEES - - 1,250 = - - _ _
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEESE 12,515 7 N - 1,839 7 375 =
Creditors, deposits MRS Elizd

received and accruals  RIETER (350) - (654) - (145) = (3,030) =
Amounts due from/fto)  FEI/ (EEf)

group companies SEAFFE 174,013 3,424 - 24649 (746315) 140,393 - 21,08

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
approximate changes in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response
to reasonably possible changes in the

5. UBEBEERARE

(&)

(d) &¥ERE@E)

(i) HBEEST
TRIGRBEERLAY

AEBEEAZENINE
ERHBAE RENEL
B - NEEE L RBLR SR

foreign exchange rates to which the Group (R s EEENS
has significant exposure at the end of the HEF o
reporting period.
Group
5E
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ Increase
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign  after tax and in foreign  after tax and
exchange revenue exchange revenue
rates reserve rates reserve
ShEE BB JhE BB &R
BEtA/  RGEREE Ext#,/  RUERE
m,/ (ED) (T¥) &
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
ERFr BEFT
RMB N 65 1.45 2,575
HK$ ok (1.81) (1,009) (1.45) 8,097
Increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange INEER EFH (T
rate with the same percentage will result in BESESHRBEEF
effect on profit or loss after tax and revenue RNEBR KB FEEER

reserve with the same magnitude but
different direction.

FRIM AR L EHE

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation
of the instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ profit or loss after tax
and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting date. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2013.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes

arising from investments in equity securities. As the

carrying amount of such investments is insignificant

compared to the total assets of the Group.

Management considers the exposure to equity

price risk to be insignificant.
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(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the
financial instruments of the Group carried
at fair value were listed and categorised
into level 1 of the three-level fair value
hierarchy as described in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

= Level 8 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 30 June 2014 and
2013, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

(i) KRR EIRZEMTA
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5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2014 and 2013. The carrying
amounts of non-trade balances with a joint
venture approximate the fair values due to
the relatively short-term maturity of these
financial assets and liabilities. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following

segments to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of food

products including flour and edible oil.

Detergent: the manufacture and sale of household and

institutional cleaning products.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, tax recoverables and current
assets with the exception of interest in a joint
venture, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include tax payables,
all trade creditors and accruals attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments, bank loans managed directly by the
segments, and other current liabilities with the
exception of amount due to a joint venture and

other corporate liabilities.
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6. DEBEFE =)

SEEE  EEREBRMA)

6. Segment Reporting (ontinueq)

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a)
(continued)

MEEEBITHREEABRMZE
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EREDTILERNMT o

Information regarding the Group’s reportable

executive management is set out below.

2014 2013
—B-mE —Z-=F
Segment Segment
Food  Detergent total Food Detergent total
R AERR Spst BR BRRR A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT AEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Revenue from external ~ BANREFZ
customers WA 3,597,767 517,143 4,114,910 3,165,514 456,057 3,611,571
Reportable segment  EFRESH2
profit from FG gyl
130 operations 145,672 78401 204078 135113 70051 205,164
Interest income FEWA 6,003 5,939 11,942 3,540 2,927 6,467
Finance costs BEAA (4,799) - (4,799) (5,550) = (6,550)
Depreciation and KEEHER
amortisation for the - §]
year (57,114) (2,081) (59,195 (54,982 (1967)  (56,949)
Other material profitor ~ EtEE 181
loss items: BHR
— Exchange (loss)/ - ER(&8E)
gain /W (473) (29) (502) 16,858 541 17,399
— Charge for - RER
doubtful debts i (185) - (185) (3) (20) (23)
Income tax charge HEXH (16,804) (16,457) (33,261) (13,492) (16,837) (30,329)
Reportable segment FEREA 2
assets gE 2,077,122 343,568 2,420,690 1,894,350 281,707 2,176,057
Reportable segment FEREA 2
liabilities a% (732,072)  (89,324)  (821,396)  (601,782) (71,679  (673.461)
Additions to non- FREME
current segment ABERE
assets during the BE
year 32,406 3,748 36,154 57,429 1,144 58,573

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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6. Segment Reporting (ontinueq)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

PEPEE =)

FEREITBEA -~ 58 -

revenue, profit or loss, assets and BEMEBERAGER
liabilities
2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
/gfﬁ"h&'T'E
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue EEREDEBZUA 4,114,910 3,611,571
Service and rental income PRI KRESUWA 2,139 5,992
Consolidated turnover MESER 4,117,049 3,617,563
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit from  E/EIRE D2
operations AR F 224,073 205,164
Share of loss of a joint venture E{EAA"\TE?E (269) (9,158)
Finance costs RN (4,799) (6,550
Unallocated exchange loss KROE 2 B R EE (78) (76)
Gain on disposal of an industrial & T # Ak
property 4,058 28,626
Unallocated head office and RAOBMZB AT R
corporate expenses TEER (47,103) (53,348)
Consolidated profit before FEBRT AR
taxation 175,882 165,658
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EEREDH2EE 2,420,690 2,176,057
Elimination of inter-segment 53 B0 8 FE R 2 1K 88
receivables (32,312) (35,561)
2,388,378 2,140,496
Interest in a joint venture SN TER 43,241 43,510
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 7 50
Unallocated head office and RABMZBATR
corporate assets TEEE 40,443 74,212
Consolidated total assets GEBEE 2,472,069 2,258,268
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities FERESB2BEE (821,396) (673,461)
Elimination of inter-segment 2 EBE A R 2 K8
payables 32,312 35,561
(789,084) (637,900)
Amount due to a joint venture  FENEE A TEIE (42,705) (42,771)
Unallocated head office and AOBWZBATR
corporate liabilities TEEE (16,930) (31,892)
Consolidated total liabilities LeEas (848,719) (712,563)

Eii#& ’:ﬁ HE/{T/&/E“&Z\F‘
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6. Segment Reporting (ontinueq)

6. DEBEFE =)

(c) Geographical information (c) HEEE
The following table sets out information about TREH BN EE R BIE ()
the geographical location of (i) the reportable EEREIBEIREE 2K
segment’s revenue from external customers and (i) A RN EBEEEE - HE
the Group’s fixed assets, leasehold land, intangible T MEEE ¥ LNRER
assets, interest in a joint venture and other non- FEMERBEE([IEEFERE
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The EE]) BEENFBHEIIEE
geographical location of customers is based on RIS RN E Y IE X 2 b B &
the location at which the services were provided EoBEEE -HEITHWREM
or the goods delivered. The geographical location IRBEENFIBHEREIRAEF
of the fixed assets, leasehold land and other non- EHME BREEEREENA
current assets is based on the physical location BitEIRBEEBE S REINEE
of the assets, in the case of intangible assets and HETME - GE QA TERWTE
goodwill, the location of the operation to which WERRHEEMIME
they are allocated, in the case of interest in a joint
venture, the location of operations.
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=f
Hong
Kong
Mainland and Mainland
China Macau China Total
EER
HEXE B REAR CH)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BYTT  BEFT  BETT
Reportable segment's  EERELHE
revenue from AREFZ
external customers WA 735,964 3,378,946 4,114,910 745,489 2,866,082 3,611,571
Specified non-current  EEFFRBEE
assets 77,753 723,197 800,950 73,394 754,348 827,742
(d) Information about major customers (d) FAREFEERZER

During the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013,
there was no single external customer that
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue from external customers.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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Juje 2y

7. Turnover 7. E%EHE
The Company is an investment holding company and the ARARA—BREZERAR  HWEA
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages RMEEXEKFIINE1BIEEHE 183
181 to 183. Hoe
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods EEBAREFUINIEFNEMmMNES
supplied to external customers as well as service and FHEMBRERESKBA - REBHEE
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set EOMWMT :
out below:

2014 2013

—ET—@mE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFr BEF T

Sales of goods HERMR 4,114,910 3,611,571
Service and rental income iR Y5 &AL ON 2,139 5,992
4,117,049 3,617,563

Other Revenue and Other Net 8. HubUg A\ REHMiFUEE

Income
2014 2013
—EF—MmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETIT BHF T
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 1,596 1,756
Net gain on disposal of available- ~ HERAMHHEZHKEES
for-sale financial assets g - 3,720
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERETEEEEEIE (580) (1,224)
Interest income FEUA 11,942 6,467
Net exchange (loss)/gain B F(EE) s (580) 17,323
Gain on disposal of an industrial HETERYEWS (HF)
property (Note) 4,058 28,626
Miscellaneous Hity 3,628 1,102
20,064 57,770

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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8. Other Revenue and Other Net
Income (continued)

Note: Total gain from disposal of an industrial property to
an independent third party is HK$32,684,000 after
verification by the Group, of which HK$28,626,000 was
recognised in the financial year 2012/13.

9. Finance Costs

8. HMUWARHEMFW

(&)

M EEERER HEILRAYER
A BB 32,684,000 0 H A
B 08,626,000 B R=F—=/
— = REERR -

9. RHERAE

2014 2013
—T—-lEF —Z-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBEFT EBETT

Interest on bank loans wholly REFREHEEZ
repayable within five years IRITERWFE

4,799 5,550

The Group’s effective borrowing interest rate was
approximately 1.53% (2013: 1.80%) per annum during the
year.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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- - bl &,
10. Profit Before Taxation 10. B& %% 5t F
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEADSRE IR, (FTA) :
(crediting):
2013
—F2—=
HK$’000
JBEETF T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRKN(BIEES
remuneration — note 117) e — At 17)
— Wages, salaries and allowances — I¥& - FHs RER 240,504 219,104
— Charge/(reversal) of equity — BRAEENURD A
settled share-based payment BERCIRER
expenses (note 31) (BmE) (Mt 31) 3,544 (798)
— Defined contribution retirement  — EXEHFGRKETE
plans 19,866 16,345
263,914 234,651
Auditors’ remuneration AN &
— Audit services — ZERHB 1,753 1,655
— Tax and other services — Bk HEMRE 1,159 788
2,912 2,443
Depreciation of fixed assets EEEERE 59,479 57,454
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE iy 2,698 2,657
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 319 350
Net exchange loss/(gain) ERFER (k) 580 (17,323)
Charge for doubtful debts RIBRER 185 23
Operating lease rental of properties &EEHEEVEMNELER 3,220 3,135
Cost of inventories (note 23(b)) BFERAK (BT 23(b)) 3,435,367 3,041,447
Carrying value of fixed assets HEETEERERE
disposed 1,115 1,915
Less: Net proceeds from disposal & - HERBEEEMNTEBFIE
of fixed assets (5635) (691)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets HERBEEEEREHE 580 1,224

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BERAF
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The Group participates in pension schemes organised
by the PRC government whereby the Group is required
to pay annual contributions at rates ranging from 12%
to 21% (2013: 12% to 22%) of the standard wages
determined by the relevant authorities in the PRC during
the year ended 30 June 2014.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2013: HK$25,000). Under the
ORSO Scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 10%
and 5% of the employees’ relevant income respectively.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately. Save
for the above schemes, the Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

Annual Report 2014
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11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments

(a)

The directors’ emoluments of the Company and
its subsidiaries calculated in accordance with
Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, with reference to Section
161 of the Predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, are as follows:

11.

i o

5

ER

MATH N S BN

it

REHEBDARGIMKRI1E
781k » WS E KA E B QRS
BITRA E 2R DA REWE
REAWESMET -

Group
45E
Basic
salaries/ Share-
Directors’ Retirement based
fees Bonuses schemes payments
(Note (vii)) (Note (vii)) contributions  Sub-total (Note ())
it/ HifE
E20k ftil Bt 3 PAE
(iep)  (WaEmp)  HEER INgt (Wit —%-DE
HK$000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
2¥fn  BEFr EEfr B¥Fn BEFn EREEA
Executive director HiEs
LEUNG Joseph 278 3,026 770 15 3,811 1,633 5,444
Non-executive directors HTES
WHANG Sun Tze BLE 200 - - 200 - 200
KWEK Leng Hai (Note () S/ = = - - - -
TAN Lim Heng (Note () BRE ) - - - - - -
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (j) LREmE)) = - - - - -
Independent non-executive  BiFEHITES
directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Note (i) BRE (/) 121 - - 121 = 121
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (i) EEUB(H i) 202 - - 292 - 202
AU Chee Ming (Note (i) BRAWH 1) 246 - - 246 - 246
HUANG Lester Garson, J.P. ERM%E P,
(Note (v) (i) 170 - - 170 - 170
Year ended 30 June 2014 HIE—E-m%
RAZTALEE 4,055 770 15 4,840 1,633 6,473
—E—NFEFR mIE(ES)BRA R
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11. Directors’ and Senior

(a)

1M1. EERERITBIASEM

Executives’ Emoluments (continueq) (1)
(continued) (@ (#&)
Group
448
Basic
salaries/
Directors’ Retirement Share-
fees Bonuses schemes based
(Note (vi) (Note (vi))  contributions Sub-total payments 2013
e/
EEL % 4 il VL
W2 (WEip)  sEER Nt BlzfAE -B-=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEfr  EEFr BEfn BT BETn EEFa
Executive director HiTEE
LEUNG Joseph 228 2913 500 15 3428 - 3,428
Non-executive directors FnES
WHANG Sun Tze BLE 200 - - 200 - 200
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (}) BLEMH) - - - - - -
TAN Lim Heng (Note (j) RIE M) - - - - - -
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (j) BRRMH)) - - - - - -
DING Wai Chuen (Note (v}) — TE& (1) 78 = = 78 = 78
Independent non-executive  BIFHITEES
directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BRT 310 - - 310 = 310
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony EHE 280 - - 280 - 280
AU Chee Ming Ef&H 240 - - 240 = 240
Year ended 30 June 2013 BUE-E-=FAA=THLEE 4,02 500 15 453 = 4536
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Notes:

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

No directors’ fees be payable to any salaried directors
employed by group companies of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the Company’s ultimate
holding company for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement retired as independent non-
executive director and ceased to be the chairman of the
Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) and Board Remuneration
Committee (“BRC”) after the conclusion of 2013 annual
general meeting held on 20 November 2013 (the “2013
AGM”).

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony was re-designated as chairman
of the BAC on 20 November 2013 after the conclusion of
the 2013 AGM.

Mr. AU Chee Ming was re-designated as chairman of the
BRC on 20 November 2013 after the conclusion of the
2013 AGM.

Mr. HUANG Lester Garson, J.P. was appointed as an
independent non-executive director as well as a member
of the BAC and a member of BRC on 20 November 2013
after the conclusion of the 2013 AGM.

Mr. DING Wai Chuen resigned as non-executive director
after the conclusion of 2012 annual general meeting held
on 20 November 2012.

Basic salaries/directors’ fees — The amounts paid and
payable to non-executive directors were directors’ fees.
The amount paid and payable to executive directors was
basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were performance
related.

There was no arrangement under which a director had
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the director under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 2(r)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, include adjustments to
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants
of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted are
disclosed under note 31.

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BE-Z-—NEAA=THEFEEILH#
BEEWLRINTFRAEARARZR
# 3R A A Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad ((HLCM|)&E A
BFEANZHESE -

BEESTER-B-—=5+—-A=+
BETZ-Z—=ZFRRBEFES
(=Z2-—=FRRAFES)ERE
REBYFAHTESL FERIES
EERZEE((EZE )RESZEH
WEESE(MES ) EFBML -

BERRAER=-Z—=F+—-A=+
AZ-Z—=FRRBAFEGLER%E
AERBEESER -

BEBEER=-B—=F+—A=+
AR-Z-—=FRREFEFERR
AEAMEESERE -

BRALE  AFHIR=-Z—=F
+—AZt+HEZ=E-—=FRRBE
EEARAERERBNEHNITES
REZERMZEEZRE °

TEBEER-_ZE——-F+—HA=+
BN —_FRRBEFEGLEFRE
BHEHITES -

BN/ EBRzEHE EBRE—FH
TESUESHEEFARE - HITE
EUH A WE -

REFEZOHN /EAEANREEE

T o

WETVESHRERRBREWERE
BRIz HE

EHRERREARDATRDREETE
BYIESCRENGTE  ZERE
BEDBEAEERROAER 2
R 5 (HHIFA B EE 2(r) (i) ) BTl &
IEBREME  BREERBAC
HHENREIR > REZBEmMER
LA EERHENSEE -

ZEFEBINBEBREIERARERN
RADBE 2 FRRKEEST AEH T
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11. Directors’ and Senior 11.

Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)
(b) The five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included one
(2013: one) director, details of whose remuneration
are set out above. The remaining employees’
emoluments are analysed as follows:

EERERITHASMN

(4&)
(b) HAEBERSKANES

TEBREBANESEE—RE

B(Z2-=ZF:—F) MEn
HBEEIREX - AT RENFH
EHFWT

2014 2013
—E—0mEFE —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT JBEF T

Salaries, housing benefits and e EEEAIR
share-based payments AR B ER 2R 7,118 6,785
Discretionary bonuses BB TE AL 831 860
Retirement schemes contributions RIREHEIfAERR 188 169
8,137 7,814

The number of employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands was:

MEBTIIRENRSHENT !

2013

HKS$ BHT —E-—=fF
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2

4 4
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12. Taxation

(@)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during
the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax. As
a result, the profits from flour mill operations are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax for the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%).

The income tax charge represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred taxation charges
as follows:

12. #HIE

(@)

EERBEENEBARZFER
BEDREBEFRMGTERR G
FEBEE1665% (ZFE— =4 :
16.5%) 5 1R °

BB LU IR IS A T B A BE AR
FIEE 28 THE AR fhEHE
AR RZEER 2 HERE
HYBIIRSH o

FBEEPRARREELRERIM
T2hETERRBEEMEH
Hit —2-—NEAA=1THK
TE-ZFRA=ZTHLEER
SRR PR 2 B A TR R
BIRRE 2 RHTEH o

RPBERELE 2 HEMKE A
7 FRMERBEERE25% (=
F—=F :125%) ¢

R HAREMTERIEL
FHRIERAR - HARNT :

2013
—F2—=
HK$’000
B F T
Current tax: REFHIE ¢
Hong Kong taxation EABRE 603 1,366
Under-provision in respect of LRIFEZ T 2EE
prior years 72 4,138
. 00 675 ] 5,504
Taxation outside Hong Kong BBLLINIE 34,392 28,353
Under-provision in respect of LRI FEZ T 2EE
prior years 9 390
DU e
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): EREFLIE (Bt 13(a) -
Origination and reversal of temporary Zi =8B EE R
differences . B® . 296
35,119 34,543

T-NFEFHR MIR(FE)GRAF
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12. Taxation (continued)

(©)

12. #IE @)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before taxation per consolidated income

statement as follows:

(©)

ARE W R BRT AR R B2 A
EZBEZHAEHMOT :

2013
—E—-=F
HK$’000
BT T
Profit before taxation BB AR R 175,882 165,658
Notional tax on profit before REAREMBEGTE
taxation, calculated at the rates BREL AR A 2 Fi 18
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned 47,005 45,960
Tax effect of non-deductible E5r%y e N1 0D )
expenses X 2B 3,201 3,039
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  HEERFHU A
Bee (1,319) (6,610)
Tax effect of tax losses not RF U IEEE
recognised PAE S 6,915 6,951
Tax effect of utilisation of FRARURFEERT
unused tax losses not DR EERZ
previously recognised MgETE (2,597) (659)
Effect of tax concessions BERzTE (18,941) (19,931)
Tax effect of loss attributable EheEAREEZ
to a joint venture HxeE 45 1,511
Under-provision in prior years DRI EE 2T 2E%E 81 4,528
Others Hith 729 (246)
Tax charge for the year REEMEHREIH 35,119 34,543

The Inland Revenue Department of the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region (the “IRD”) has

initiated a tax audit on certain group companies.

The Group has reached an agreement with the

IRD on the tax audit during the year. The Group

considered that the provision made in the financial

statements is appropriate.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BlZ 20146 530 I FE
12. Taxation (continued) 12. *HIE(%)
()  Current taxation in the statement of financial e TEHEMRREFANAREHER
position represents: x:

Group Company
%0 $48

2014 2013 2014 2013
Z¥-MF EEElal —T-F gl
HK$'000 WLV  HK$'000 RISV
EnTr Wiaeam =717t Wik

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax ~ AEEEBH B E

for the year 603 1,366 - —
Balance of profits tax (recoverable)/  LAATEE 2 B8 () /
provision relating to prior years BEgH (1,165) 8,784 = =

(562) 10,150 - -

Provision for taxation outside BBIMIERE
Hong Kong 13,723 9,940 - —
13,161 20,090 - -
Reconciliation to the statement of financial position: MR R R ZFE :
Group Company
*KE FAE
2014 2013 2014 2013
b IR 2= Rl —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
BETFT BETFT BETFT BEFT
Tax recoverable EyHE (2,421) (3,098) - -
Tax payable FEABIE 15,582 23,188 - —

13,161 20,090 - =

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation

13. iBEHIE

(@ Group (a) AKHE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERAUEMRTRPERNIEL
recognised in the consolidated statement of HB(EE) AERERAEE
financial position and the movements thereon RUBIEE2SBANOT :
during the current and prior years are as follows:
Accelerated
tax
depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses Total
MERBRE B HEEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vit BETT BETT Vit
At 1 July 2012 R-E-—E+A-H 1,872 (346) (1,872) (346)
(Credited)/charged to income REERAGIA) /MK
statement (note 12(b)) (Wt 120) (184) 243 237 296
At 30 June 2013 R=B-=%£5A=1H 1,688 (108) (1,635) (50)
At 1 July 2013 RZE-=£+f-H 1,688 (103) (1,635) (50)
(Credited)/charged to income RiERA(GEA) /B
statement (note 12(b)) (it 121) (49) 46 46 43
At 30 June 2014 RZF-NExA=1H 1,639 (57) (1,589) 7)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of SEMBRRRZA :

financial position:

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE
Deferred tax assets FERERIBEEE

2013
—E-=F
HK$’000
BT

7 50
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

At 30 June 2014, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$544,458,000 (2013: HK$417,306,000).
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
as at 30 June 2014 as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed by these subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$303,181,000 (2013: HK$311,591,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax losses of HK$9,628,000 (2013:
HK$9,915,000). No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$293,553,000 (2013: HK$301,676,000) due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$35,792,000 (2013: HK$43,400,000) that will
expire within five years. Other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$150,246,000 (2013:
HK$158,792,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
in prior years. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary difference arising in connection with a
joint venture is insignificant.

RZE—NFEA=+H F#
AEBRPEIBEAZHEL TR
PEAENGEEEZERBY
544,458,000 t(= & — = F :
78 5 417,306,0007T ) ° R A
ANREHZENE A RWRERK
K WERERTRRRZEMW
BARMRAEETSDIRBRAF
(A 1 3 SR 3 5 TR 52 55 R R B R A
ZHBABRERELERHIEEE -

R-B—WEXA=+H K&
= ﬁ,% #£303,181,000 (= &
— =% : B ¥311,591,0007T )
f9 BT A FAIE 40 R SR FERR B 0% A Y
RBEEE EPRZEaERT
19,628,000 (=8 —=
7% 9,015,000 7t ) IEER TBE
E o TR % 293,553,000 7T
—Z— =% : B% 301,676,000
T)WAEIMEE ERKRRE
AT ATE R BT R
RERIAARELEBEBEEE - 3
o RERNRBBETEEE
35,792,000 t(=ZE—=F : B
#543,400,000 T) WES B R R
FREE - HihEi8 T LIERH
Hh LB o

AEBRUAMEEAE TEEE
ERBEE T MERERE 25
BER-ZE-—NFE<A=+H"
REBEE B 150,246,000 7T
(ZZ—=% : B% 158,792,000
T)NEREEZERE - BBRRE
%JE’JT\‘HEE'I#L BT LA B 50 2%
ERBAELEHIEEE °

HEE 7$EE§E’J§EHTI“$§EI
TE

>|- Hﬂk

—



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BLZE2014F6 A30HILEE
13. Deferred Taxation (continusd) 13. IREHIE =)
(b) Company (b) EAF
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EFERRRPERVELRIE
recognised in the statement of financial position (BE) BBEREXREERUA
and the movements thereon during the current and FENESENT :

prior years are as follows:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBRFBBINE BsEsE &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B F T B F T BEFTT
At 1 July 2012 N-—ZE——FtHF—H 189 (189) =
Charged to income e EAE ]S
statement = = =
At 30 June 2013 R-T—Z=%F,A=1+H 189 (189) =
At 1 July 2013 N-Z—=F+A—H 189 (189) =
Charged/(credited) to Rk RAER,(GTA)
income statement (49) 49 -
At 30 June 2014 R-T—MEA=1+H 140 (140) =
14. Profit Attributable to Equity 14. A A SRR E(SEFI
Shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders AN REEAGEESEZINCEBESER
of the Company included a loss of HK$18,963,000 (2013: RN B B FS R TR B L 18,963,000 BV S
HK$3,522,000) which has been dealt with in the financial B(ZE—=%F : B%3,522,0005t) (Ft
statements of the Company (note 32). $32) o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 H30 HILFE

15. Dividends

(a)

(b)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company (excluding the amount
paid to shares held by the Group under
the ESOP reserve) attributable to the year

15. B2

(a) FEAE/ELIBRFRSEED
BRXAFAKREREIRY
BREFE#ETRAEZR
freI&ER)

2014 2013
—F—MEF —=E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Interim dividend declared and paid HEIRE SRR
of HK$0.08 per ordinary share TRNEEBRBYE
(2013: HK$0.06 per ordinary 008t (=Z&E—=
share) EiERER0.067T) 19,068 14,302
Final dividend proposed after the BiR B HR 3 2 R R
end of the reporting period of BRESEBERBE
HK$0.13 per ordinary share 013 T(=B—=%:
(2013: HK$0.12 per ordinary FEBRABLO0127T)
share) 30,987 28,603
50,055 42,905

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company (excluding the amount
paid to shares held by the Group under
the ESOP reserve) attributable to the
previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

HIRREIRE 2 RHBRE - R
BREARIIBEEER -

(b)  HA P FEHE B 32 £ B4 AT — 1B BA
BEERGEAFTRERS
(IRZHFEARETEIR
RBEFREETRAEZ
R EIEEH)

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of
HK$0.12 per ordinary share (2013:
HK$0.08 per ordinary share)

BEEA —EMBREE
EEIRKE X R
BE  SEBEREY
012 T(=B—=%:
FEBRBE0.087T)

2014 2013
it b —F-=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYEFT BETT
28,603 19,069

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 2014630 HILFE

16. Earnings Per Share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$140,763,000
(2013: HK$131,115,000) for the year and the
weighted average number of 238,360,000 ordinary
shares (2013: 238,360,000 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year.

16. Bix& 7

(a)

BREXRF

EREXREIDREBEARD TR
IR FE 1 7% A 78 %5 140,763,000 7T
(ZZ—=4% : 8% 131,115,000
T)ERAEERNCRITEER
2 hn FE F 15 238,360,000 B
(=2 — = : 238,360,000 8% )

2013
—E-=F
000
?:
Issued ordinary shares at beginning ¥R ERE T
and end of year B 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased in prior LLAT 4 EE Bl i > & & IRt
years (note 30(a)) VS B (I 30(a)) (4,994) (4,994)
238,360 238,360
Diluted earnings per share (b) BiEFETA

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended 30 June 2014 is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$140,763,000 and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 241,220,000
after adjusting the effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share option schemes.

BE_Z-—MNFEAA=1THLE
B SRBERFDRELRQLT
% 3R FE {5 % R 8 5 140,763,000
TR ARBRARIER D REREST
BB TEBRRMOZMEFLITE
241,220,000 JRETE ©

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

REFEBR 2 MEFIIRE

for the period 238,360

Effect of deemed issue of shares under the BERERIBARD B 2 RDRERE
Company’s share option schemes FEIRITEBRRHNIE 2,860
241,220

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings
per share for the year ended 30 June 2013
because the potential ordinary shares outstanding
were anti-dilutive.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

17. Fixed Assets

(a)

17. BEIEEE

Group (@ #&%EH
Medium term
leasehold ~ Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside Construction furniture and
improvements Hong Kong in progress  motor vehicles
ERPH  EEME BE &k
BEFRESE ikl E HEIR fRiRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT EEFT EEFT BEFT
Cost: A :
A1 Jduly 2013 RZE-ZEtB-H 62,384 819,900 104,579 823,753 1,810,616
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - (6,222) (617) 8,130) (14,969)
Additions ) - 306 17,934 19,540 37,780
Transferred from construction ~ ERERIRE
in progress - 73,740 (117,810) 44,070 -
Disposals e - (153) - (1,219) (7,426)
At30J “F-MERR= 149
une 2014 R=§-BERR=1H 62,384 887,571 4,086 871,960 1,826,001
Accumulated depreciation:  RiHE
At 1 duly 2013 RZE-ZEtB-H 21,100 387,441 - 535,001 943,542
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - (4,969) - (5,035) (10,004)
Charge for the year TEERE 1,503 25,248 = 32,728 50,479
Written back on disposals HERER - (82) - (6,229) (6,311)
At 30 June 2014 R=¥-mEXA=TH 22,603 407,638 - 556,465 986,706
Impairment: W
At 1 July 2013 and RZ%-Z5tA-BR
30 June 2014 —§-MERAZ+E 33,112 142,082 - - 175,194
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2014 R=¥-mEXA=TH 6,669 337,851 4,086 315,495 664,101

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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17. Fixed Assets (continued)

17. BIEEE®

(@) Group (continued) (a) AFEE#E)
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside Construction furniture and
improvements Hong Kong in progress motor vehicles Total
R RN BB %k
BOETREE Y E2 REIE FiRAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFR BT BT BEFT
Cost: BAE:
At 1 July 2012 RZE-ZF+f-H 62,384 769,313 97,999 765,181 1,694,877
Exchange adjustments Ejigg - 19,151 3,490 23,276 45917
Additions A = 981 68,939 4,609 74,529
Transferred from BRLEIR
construction in progress - 30,846 (65,849) 36,003 -
Disposals f 3 - (391) - (4,316) (4,707)
At 30 June 2013 R=F-=E7B=+H 62,384 819,900 104,679 823,753 1,810,616
Accumulated depreciation: ~ BiiiE:
At 1 July 2012 R=8-Z£+f-H 19,590 350,248 - 491,723 861,561
Exchange adjustments EjigE = 18,495 = 13,824 27,319
Charge for the year REENE 1510 24,027 - 31,917 57454
Written back on disposals HERER - (329) = (2,463) (2,792)
At 30 June 2013 ZExR=tE 21,100 387,441 - 535,001 943,542
Impairment; HE:
At 1 July 2012 and R-F-—&tR-BR
30 June 2013 —%-Z&7xA=tH 33,112 142,082 - - 175,194
Net book value: RESE:
At 30 June 2013 R-B-Z&5A=18 8,172 290,377 104,679 288,752 691,880
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At 30 June 2014, the net book value of fixed
assets held under finance leases amounted to

HK$843,000 (2013: HK$647,000).
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BIE2014F 6 H30 HILFE

17. BIEEE®

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

(b) Company (b) &EAF
Office
equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
WAERME
R RE
HK$’000
BT

Cost: RAE :

At 1 July 2013 R-ZE—=F+tAF—H 11,310
Additions IR 567
_At30June2014  RZ¥-OFXA=+tE 0 11,877

Accumulated depreciation: HETiREE -

At 1 July 2013 R-ZE—=F+tAF—H 9,890
Charge for the year AEEE 889
_At30June2014 RZFT-OFXA=+AE 0 10,779

Net book value: BRTER(E :

At 30 June 2014 N=T—NEA=+H 1,098
Cost: RA{E

At 1 July 2012 R-ZE——-—FtHA—H 10,495

Additions R 815
_At30dJune20t3  RZ¥-=FRXA=+B = 11310
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHinE :

At 1 July 2012 R-ZE——-—FtHA—H 9,032
Charge for the year KEERE 858
_At30June203  RZ¥-=FXA=+H 9,890

Net book value: BRERE :
At 30 June 2013 R-ZE—-=F,A=1+H 1,420

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BERAF
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BIE 201446 530 HILFE
=
18. Leasehold Land 18. G i
Group
X5EE
2014 2013
—FT—NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
At beginning of year F4 92,014 91,929
Exchange adjustments (R (838) 2,742
Amortisation s (2,698) (2,657)
At end of year FR 88,478 92,014
Current portion (included BN (FF A FEUBRER
in debtors, deposits and e RBENR — MiE24)
prepayments — note 24) (2,698) (2,657)
152 o
Non-current portion FEFRE I D 85,780 89,357
The Group’s leasehold land held under medium-term AEEZPHBEYNAE T hEIE

lease comprises:

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—ET—NmE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEEZHEE L 12,411 12,787
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong &B U ZHEE 11 76,067 79,227
88,478 92,014

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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BIE2014F 6 H30 HILFE

19. EREE

19. Intangible Assets

Group
x&EH
Goodwill Trademarks Total
me [T A%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFTT BETFIT BETFT
Cost: BAHE :
At 1 July 2013 and R-ZF—-=%tA—HBX%
L 30 June 201 B —¥-D¥~A=t+E 14,714 40,282 54,996
Accumulated amortisation: BiinE
At 1 July 2013 R=ZB-=H+A—H - 39,462 39,462
Charge for the year REERE - 319 319
_At30June2014  KR-F-AFFA=+E - 39,781 39,781
Impairment: WiE
At 1 July 2013 and R-ZF—=5tA—HBX%
___ S0June2014 = 00 . —%-N¥xA=+E 128%9 - 12539
Net book value: IR FE :
At 30 June 2014 R-TB—MNE;A=1H 2,175 501 2,676
Cost: BAHE :
At 1 July 2012 and R-¥E—--#tA—HBX
. S0June2013 —¥-=%xA=tE 147114 40282 = = 54996
Accumulated amortisation: BiinE
At 1 July 2012 R-—Z2——-5+B—H — 39,112 39,112
Charge for the year REERE - 350 350
_At30June2013  R-F-=FixA=+E - 89462 89462
Impairment: Wi :
At 1 July 2012 and R-F—-—-FtA—-BX%
_ S0June2013 0 . —¥-=%7A=+tB = 128%¢ - 12939
Net book value: IR FE :
At 30 June 2013 R=T—=%;A=+H 2,175 820 2,995

FEEZHBEERACEEETRERER
RZITHERA -

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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19.

20.

Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period. Cash flows
beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3% (2013:
3%) which does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates. The
cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of
17.9% (2013: 19.9%) which reflects specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.

Interest in Subsidiaries

190. B EE @

BEMEBZHSEARMNZBER
&l

HMEZRESERBRAD I - HER
SEEBENNITERSERREFRE
Bt -ZEBETRAZESREEAR
RREEEMBRN=FHEEETE -
HER=FHNREREMFERANTETM
EF YR E3% (2013 : 3%) TR\
ReELBENKEERNRBTHER
EoBEREFARBATINER17.9%
(2013 : 19.9%) T3 » KM BERE S
EEEBENNBERRE -

20. B A B

2013
—=E—=

HK$’000

BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRBEAE 1,444,944 1,435,432

Impairment loss VERIEN = (189,557) (181,636)

Investment in subsidiaries B R aKRE 1,255,387 1,253,796

Amounts due from subsidiaries U B TR E 1,423,557 1,283,699

2,678,944 2,537,495

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHI B 2 B FIE (1,764,049) (1,555,278)

914,895 982,217

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,
unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and will not
be settled within one year.

The impairment loss of HK$7,921,000 in relation to the
amounts due from subsidiaries was made during the year
ended 30 June 2014 as the amount was considered to be
not recoverable.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 181 to 183.
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Y EAMBLARRBLHARE - &
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21.

Interest in a Joint Venture

Company

FAF

2013
“E-=F
HK$’'000
BT ERFT
- EEEEGSLESGES | EEESLEnlEs
Share of net assets BLFEE 43,241 43,510 = -
Amount due (to)/from a joint venture  (FEfY) /FEIREE A RFIE (42,705) (42,771) 182 114
The amount due (to)/from a joint venture is interest-free, () BREERARAREARE - &
unsecured and repayable on demand. IR FIRERBEERE o
Details of the joint venture, which is accounted for AEZETERGEMERRARNSE
using the equity method in the consolidated financial ENRNERFNNT ¢
statements, are as follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity holding Principal
Name of company operation indirectly activities
AT &8 s Ey BERFEDE TEER
Evergreen Oils & Fats Limited* (“Evergreen”) Cayman Islands/ Hong Kong 50 Dormant*
RERBBRARTRED MEers &F 2F LK
’ Company not audited by KPMG © REARKHERRSHAEHFE
%
# On 30 September 2011, the Group and the joint venture # N-B——FHNA=+H KEFEHE

partner entered into a mutual agreement to terminate
the Joint Venture Agreement effective 1 April 2012.
Upon termination of the Joint Venture Agreement, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, namely Lam Soon
Products Supply (Hong Kong) Company Limited, took up =il
the business in relation to the sales of products of the
Group previously carried out by Evergreen. Evergreen

BECENHBETRZELRLEE D
FUR-_ZE-—_FHA-REX-
BRILEE NS  AEB2ENE
AFE HEEREEGEEB)ERD
CEERREEBBRZEME
€ - RERMERARELRILEER
BmEOFILER -

has become dormant since the termination of the Joint

Venture Agreement.

—FEFR MmIR(FE)GRAF
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BLZE2014F6 A30HILEE
21. Interest in a Joint Venture 21. BEATHER @
(continued)
Information of the joint venture that is not individually BRIFERESE ATV BERNT :
material:
2014 2013
—FT—MNF —E-=fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Carrying amount of individually BRIFEREGE AT
immaterial joint venture in the ERIREE
consolidated financial statements 43,241 43,510

Amounts of the Group’s share of ~ AEBEELEEE QT :
the joint venture’s:

— loss from operations —REEEB (269) (9,158)
156 — other comprehensive income —AREEHMEEEBA

for the year - _

22. Available-for-sale Financial 22, O EMNMFEEE
Assets
Group Company
A%E EON |

2014 2013 2014 2013

et Ul — = bl — =
LG HK$'000 EEELEY 0l  HK$'000
ENTT ikl E%¥TT B

Listed equity securities, LhEHETHE
at market value

_T.inHongKong TER 0 15 DN 6
Others, at cost Hib A& 342 3492 - _
Impairment loss R{EEE (165) (165) = -
e U7 .. 0 -
186 193 9 16

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 H30 HILFE

23. Inventories

(a)

(b)

Inventories in consolidated statement of

23. 585

(a)

REEMBRARZEES

financial position comprise: 5
Group
xEE
2014 2013
—E—ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERFiT B F T
Raw materials =R 384,358 329,539
Work in progress R m 75,765 82,268
Finished goods SR 125,309 108,621
Inventories in transit EREm 21,431 24,809
Packing materials BER 16,291 12,496
Spare parts fEt 1,040 320
624,194 558,053
The analysis of amount of inventories (b) ERZEBZIHZEELBESH
recognised as an expense is as follows: mE :
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—g-mi —g-=%
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREFiT BT T
Carrying amount of EHTFEZREE
inventories sold 3,433,966 3,039,895
Write-down of inventories FERE 1,401 1,552
3,435,367 3,041,447

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

24. Debtors, Deposits and

Prepayments

All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are

expected to be recovered within one year.

24.

Ui - e REAH

FA

FIERWERN  ReREMRHEERE
—FRKE o

Group Company

AEE ¥ /N

2014
—F-mE
HK$’000
BB TFTT

2013 2014 2013
—HF-=F pioglubay —F-=F
HK$'000 BRELEH  HK$'000
EBETFIT Dot BETT

Total trade debtors EWE S IR AERE 299,835 257,355 - =
Less: Allowance for doubtful & - RIZEREME
debts (note 24(b)) (BtzE 24(b)) (170) (16) - —
299,665 257,339 - -
Other debtors, deposits and  HEUWIRR - B#E& R
prepayments FEIRR 99,244 118,919 158 243
Current portion of leasehold &+ — FEHE
land (note 18) BB (HfaE 18) 2,698 2,657 - =
401,607 378,915 158 243

(@) Aging Analysis

The aging of trade debtors (based on the invoice

date and net of allowance for doubtful debts) as of

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

(a) BRE&SHT

BWE ZRR(RIBEHZ RN
MERRIBREB) NS UL R

IR DMWT ¢
Group Company
ARE AAT

2014
—F-mEF
HK$°000
BETFT

2013 2014 2013
—E-=F milgluba —F—-=F
HK$'000 BEELEHIN  HK$'000
BETT Wit agas BETT

0 — 3 months E2E2={EA 296,119 253,452 - —
4 - 6 months Mz xEB 3,229 3,887 = =
over 6 months NMEA B E 317 = - —

299,665 257,339 - —

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a).

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

24. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continueq)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

2()(7)-

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

24.

AR « e R

;X&)
(b)  FEMCEE SRR > i (EAS1E

EWE S ERRBERSRE > —R%
EERRBEREFETHE - MASE
ERAESEITRENES Y
o EWBERT - HEREEE
SEEPREKRE S ERR(RKH
F2()3)) °

FEREREREREBAMRE

PHRZREGESHNT ¢
Group Company
AEE EAT

2014

—T—-MmF
HK$°000
BT

2013 2014 2013

TE-=F = oo uks TE—=fF

HK$'000 BEGLEHE  HK$'000
BETT B iagay BETT

At beginning of year 4] (16) (675) - —
Recognition of RREEE

impairment loss (185) (23) — —
Uncollectible amounts  Hifi§5 7~ ] W [ & 58

written off 30 689 - =
Exchange adjustments [ 3 #8% 1 (7) - -
At end of year FR (170) (16) = -

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 2014630 HILFE

24. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

24. FEWARFR « B R TE
=h
FA (&)
(c) REEREBEZEWRES
HRFX
FmfE @RI BB EBEIIIEE
B 2 1Y FE IR B 5 BR TR AR iR
DATWT
Group Company
AEE AATF

2013 2014 2013
—E—=F b Bl —F = F
LC X0l HIK$ 000 HK$’000

-Loaal ENTT Bl

Neither past due nor  REIH R AMERELERE
impaired 278,049 241,483 - =
Past due for less than BEIDRAHER=1EA
3 months 20,083 15,186 — —
Past due for more than B ZRA={E A B R
3 months but less +—{@A
than 12 months 1,533 670 — —
299,665 257,339 - -

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. Collaterals over

properties are obtained from certain customers.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents

25. e REEEH

Group Company
F%E F28

2014 2013 2014 2013
mt-clluih- il — = fmbcluib- il —F—=F
I HK$'000 BELEHN  HK$'000
BETT BAAsA EETr WGk

Cash on hand and at banks R&REITER 312,212 232,092 556 800
Time deposits EHFR 330,492 258,125 - =
642,704 490,217 556 800

Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured
within three months and earn interest at the respective

short term deposit rates.

26. Bank Loans

At 30 June 2014, the bank loans were repayable as

follows:

RITEFRRBESARTERNZRAHE
ZEBFERRAE - ERERIR=
BAREH  YUREEZEBERNR
BREXF S, o

26. RITE™

RZB-EEANA=1TH  RITEREA

RTHIHAREE :
Group Company
AEH AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

et U — T = bk —F— =
LG HK$'000 EELEY M  HK$'000
Vol BT WLl EETT

Within 1 year or on demand —FRFIRER 269,000 269,000 — =
After 1 year but within —FZEBRMER
2 years 16,000 — — —
After 2 years but within MEBREREFA
5 years 68,000 — - —
. 84000 o o . -
353,000 269,000 - —

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in HK$ and

unsecured.

FEAREZRITEREBETER
EIRE -

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

26.

27.

Bank Loans (continued)

All of the group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 5(b). As at 30 June 2014, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2013:$ nil).

Creditors, Deposits Received
and Accruals

The aging analysis of trade creditors (based on the invoice
date) is as follows:

26. SRITER @)

AEBRERTEEARES THAL
BrEEaBREMeRH ER2H
MIBHBITLERTHRZERRE -
WEAEBMERBEBER:E  AERER
BECRIZEESE AEETHER
URRETZELE FREAEEER
REBESRBRZE - THEBHANKE
5b)c RZE—MUFARA=ZTHER=-Z
—=ZFXA=1TH HMEERTAEE
REEEZ32HE -

FEMERA - EWERER
rEstE&H

BNEZHRERR(RBEZXZAH) DM

27.

T
Group Company
FEE F248]

2013 2014 2013
—E-=F miglubay —F—-=F
HK$'000 BEGLEHE  HK$'000
BETT Boiagay BETT

0 - 3 months EE=EA 261,756 216,639 — =

4 — 6 months 275 E8 A 1,710 1,203 — =

Total trade creditors B E SR 263,466 217,842 = =

Deposits received gz 17,265 14,810 - =
Other creditors and accruals H{th fE BR 7R & FEST

EH 155,868 144,746 7,773 11,588

436,599 377,398 7,773 11,588

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE 201496 530 HILFE
28. Other Current Liabilities 28. Hihiigh& &
Group Company
AEE EAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
et Ui — = k- R Ui — =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT W:LEw BT WL e
Obligations under MERENERE
finance leases 212 154 - =
29. Other Non-current Liabilities 29. HihIERZFEE
Group Company
AEE EAT

2014 2013 2014 2013

b Ul —F—=F bk —F—=F
LG HK$'000 EELEY M  HK$'000
ora Al EX T Wt BT

Obligations under finance RMEHENERE
leases

— After 1 year but within — —FEERME

2 years A 162 52, - —
— After 2 years but within — MERERESE

5 years A 459 — — —

621 52 = =

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BZ20146 30 HILFE
30. Share Capital 30. Ig&
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) EERBITEER
2014 2013
—ET—@mE —E-=F
No. of No. of
shares shares
BinEE BrgE
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
FR  EETFIT FhE  BEFT

Authorised: (note 1) EERA : (A7 (1))
Ordinary shares of BRBE1TZ
$1 each (note 2) @R 2) -

300,000 300,000

Ordinary shares, ERTREHRE

issued and fully LiER :
paid:
At 1 July ntHB—H 243,354 243,354 243,354 243,354
Transition to no-par N-_ZE—NE
value regime on =A=HERBZE
3 March 2014 EEESIE
(note 3) (B1&E(3) - 429,423 = =
At 30 June RANBA=1H 243,354 672,777 243,354 243,354
Notes Hrat -
1 Under the New Hong Kong Companies (1) RER-Z-—NFE=R=H

Ordinance, which commenced operation on 3
March 2014, the concept of authorised share
capital no longer exists.

2 In accordance with section 135 of the New Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the company’s
shares no longer have a par or nominal value with
effect from 3 March 2014. There is no impact
on the number of shares in issue or the relative
entitlement of any of the members as a result of
this transition.

3 In accordance with the transitional provisions
set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the New
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on 3 March
2014 any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account has become part of the
company’s share capital.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, there were
4,994,000 ordinary shares acquired and held by
the Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose
of satisfying the exercise of share options granted
to directors and eligible employees.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as the
ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total
bank borrowings less cash and short term funds.

BEBERZBHEATRERAFEEIK
ZRE  AARARTE2ZRKE L
REBERBROEE-—EREE -5
ARBRZRBEENS  FEE
BRERRSFER -

RIE-—NEAA=+HR=ZZE
—=ZFXA=1tH  BAREER
F IR 9 SR B R T MR 1T SRR
TEBREIROABERES KRG
BRFEEIEMR 4,994,000 B ©

AEEEREANEERRR
RESEEAFELE  BBA
= i & AR 7% BLE B EL R ok 7 A8 R
MEE  UREBHSERAE
SRETMERSRRERER
RHHMASEEEFRTE

rEEEBRERHEREER
s REE  LERSKRERE
BERTTRFE2ESEEK
FEHEREFNERNRRTRNES
RREZEREGFE  LEEL
BRENS(CHERZBELS

o

FEBUEREBLER - BER
FERREZRERNT S ERE
FEEERERELAEB - ER
b AEEBERAEBLERRE
RAEDARRELEEZRFEE
MEtR - FEEEEAERREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE 201446 530 HILFE
30. Share Capltal (continued) 30. H&*(%’U
(b) Capital management (continued) (b) BEXEE#E)
Group Company
AEE EAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
-l — T —=F bl bl =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B TT W-iavAl EETT Wi e
Bank loans RITER
— repayable within — —FREE
1 year 269,000 269,000 - —
— repayable after — —FRERME
1 year but within AEE
2 years 16,000 = = —
— repayable after — MEBERASF
2 year but within AEE
166 5 years 68,000 —_ - —
Less: Cash and cash Jif - RERRESEHE
equivalents (642,704) (490,217) (556) (800)
Net liquid funds FRBES (289,704) (221,217) (556) (800)

Equity attributable to ~ Zx 2 T R R EG#E
shareholders of the
Company 1,612,499 1,534,854 909,125 973,222

Equity-debt ratio EXREERE 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014



For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiE20145¥6 530 HILFE

A share option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and
amended and approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date
of Approval”). The amendment to the rules of the 2003
Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval by the
shareholders was to, among other, allow grant of options
over newly issued shares and/or transfer of existing shares
by a trust of the 2003 Share Option Scheme (the “Trust”)
which established between the Company and a trustee of
the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, and to
align the rules under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
Company or its subsidiaries may make loan to the Trust
from time to time, subject to the maximum amount of
HK$90,000,000, to purchase shares of the Company for
fulfilling the obligation under the share option schemes of
the Company.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 23 May 2013
and a new Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the
“ESOS 2013”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
23 April 2013 and took effect on 25 April 2013. Upon
expiration of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, no further
option can be granted under 2003 Share Option Scheme,
but all options granted thereunder will remain exercisable
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme.

There were share options for 14,600,000 ordinary shares
granted under the ESOS 2013, in which share options
for 5,000,000 ordinary shares were granted to Group
Managing Director as at 30 June 2014 and the granting
of share options for 2,570,000 ordinary shares were
approved by shareholders at the 2013 annual general
meeting of the Company as required under the Listing
Rules and the terms of ESOS 2013.

—IE R AR BERESTEI ([ 2003 B0 TR BB HE
FENDR=-ZBZE=FRA-T=HER
RIWERR-ZEAETNA+NARB(H#t
EAHDMABRRENAE EEREN
EEET o L& B H - BL2003 i 13 72
BRMERAZZEEITIEERR 2’
B HPEEETRE S RAD B %
TRHR, 5518 H 2003 K17 R B R
FEPNER(ETEDEFETIRAF
BEAZEGRZIRANKYL > MF
AAAREEZZENBAR)EER
ERMzABEE URREBELWRAE
17 EE R BMEHISET o R AT HEKE
A5 A T EE R % R 5 90,000,000
TRZERTFZERET AEBERAT
2R LBTRORBETTEINETE -

2003 RMPARBHETE DR =-Z—=F5
A-t+=HER I —=F1THA
ERMABREITE(2013R DR IBRE
FEDNER-E—=FNA=-+=HE
BERitE TR=ZFE—=FENA=+H
HEM - 200310 RBESTEER
% RN ETEER 2003 B% 17 58 B8 R At
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MR 0 R B R A AR 5 2003 IR 17 R B8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BiZ 2014630 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based 31. EBRAEGEHEH UK A
Transactions (ontinued) BB 5=
Options granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme RIE 2003 R EBREST IR 2013 R 170 R B
and ESOS 2013 are subject to achievement of RFABMREECRBECFEBNREDS
performance-based vesting condition. The option shall EENTBRERREEREE SIEE -
lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an employee BORBERERAFLAREE ZE
of the Group or the performance-based condition is IZHASAREEERBIEERAR -8
not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to RORBEEETEEARBEARQT —
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is BREFEROER o

settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) RHZEHRFIFEHEFOT :
are as follows:

2003 Share Option Scheme: 2003 1P R EERERT &

Number of Contractual
instruments Exercisable period life of options

REEHERE ST REBESH

Options granted to a former

director:

RBEET—BESE

— 26 August 2010 2,430,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years

— RZE-ZFFNAZ+H from vesting date upon  3.85%F

BRC’s approval after
30 June 2014
E-Z2-—NUFEXA=1+H
EHESHERNEREAR
EBAREAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
from vesting date upon  4.85%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2015
E-ZE—AFR<A=TH
EMESHELNEER
EAREAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
from vesting date upon ~ 5.85 %
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2016
EZE-REXRA=1H
EMESHERNEER
EREAR

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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For the year ended 30 June 2014

BZ20146 30 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based 31. % ﬁzlifq_:ﬁ B LR 1 B
Transactions (continued) RS @
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) TBEBZEFFEENT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual
instruments Exercisable period life of options
REEEYEB TI{TERE REESHH
— 16 November 2010 3,170,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.62 years
- RZE-ZF+—-—F+H from vesting date upon  3.62

BRC’s approval after
30 June 2014
E-ZE—NFEXRB=1H
EMEESHERNEBAR
EBREAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.62 years
from vesting date upon  4.62 &
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2015
E-ZE—RFX<A=1H
EHNEESHERNEREA
BAEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.62 years
from vesting date upon  5.62 £
BRC'’s approval after
30 June 2016
E_ZE—R"FXA=1H
rEMESHERNEER
EAEAR

Options granted to employees:

RBERTET :

— 26 August 2010 13,400,000 () 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years

—R-E—-sENAB=+A~A from vesting date upon ~ 3.85%F
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2014
E-E-WFEARA=1+H
EWEEHARENEER
EANERA

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
from vesting date upon  4.85%
BRC'’s approval after
30 June 2015
E-E-—HFEASA=TH
EMESHERNEEB AR
BREA R

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
from vesting date upon  5.85 %
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2016
E=ZE—AREXA=1+H
EHESHERNEER
EBAREAR

=

Total share options granted 19,000,000
RORIERERTEH

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BERAF
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31. Equity Settled Share-based 31. % ﬁzlifq_:ﬁ B LR 1 B
Transactions (continued) RS @
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) TBEBZEFFEENT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

ESOS 2013: 2013 R RIERESTE
Number of Contractual

instruments Exercisable period life of options
REREHE TI{TERE REEeHHY

Options granted to a director:

RBERT-—BES

— 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 1,250,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 1 year
- RZE-—=FXAZ+N\H from vesting date upon 1%
(#E3% 1) BRC’s approval after

30 June 2014
EE-—NWEASB=1H
EMEEHERNEBR
EAREAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 2 years
from vesting date upon 2
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2015
E-ZE-RFA<A=+H
EHMESHERNEER
EAEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 3 years
from vesting date upon 3%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2016
E=—Z—R"EXRA=TH
rEMESHERNEER
EAREAR

— 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 3,750,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 4 years
— R=ZB-—=Fx<A=+N\H from vesting date upon 44
(#t3%2) BRC’s approval after
30 June 2017
E=ZE—tFX<A=TH
BHESMER
HEEBRENERRA

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 5 years
from vesting date upon 5%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2018
EZE—-NEXA=1+H
EHESHERNEEAR
BAEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 6 years
from vesting date upon 6%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2019
E=ZE-AFARA=1H
EHMESHERNEER
ENEA A

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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BZ20146 30 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based 31. % ﬁzlifq_:ﬁ B LR 1 B
Transactions (continued) RS @
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) TBEBZEFFEENT : (&)

are as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual
instruments Exercisable period life of options

OREERE FI{TERRE RIRESHN

Options granted to eligible
executives:

REBERTEERITHAE

— 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000 () 40% — Within 6 months 1 year

—RZZE-—=xA=1+/\H from vesting date upon 1%

(35 1) BRC'’s approval after

30 June 2014
E-Z—NFARA=TH
EMESHERNEBAR
EAREAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 2 years
from vesting date upon 2%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2015
E-E-RFA~A=t+H
FEHNESERNEREAR
BAEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 3 years
from vesting date upon 3%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2016
EZE—REXA=1+H
ENESHERNEEAR
EAREAR

— 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000 () 40% — Within 6 months 4 years
—RZE-—=FXAZ+NH from vesting date upon 4 &
(#E3%2) BRC'’s approval after
30 June 2017
E_ZE—tHFAX<A=TH
EHESHERNEBA
EBAREAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 5 years
from vesting date upon 5%
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2018
E=B-NFARA=TH
EHESHERNEER
EAREAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 6 years
from vesting date upon 64
BRC’s approval after
30 June 2019
E-E-NnFARA=tH
FEHNEESHERNEER
BAEAR

=

Ry

Total share options granted 14,600,000
RO ZDEREETEH

—T-NFEFHR HIR(FE)BERAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#Esh KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2014

BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE
31. Equity Settled Share-based 3. BRAEEHLURGB A
Transactions (continveq BIEIZ 5 @)
(b) The number and weighted average (b) BRDPEBEMEE RMESE
exercise prices of share options are as HWITEENT :
follows:
2003 Share Option Scheme: 2003 R 1D R IERERT 2 -
2014 2013
—F—-ME —E2-=fF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
IiEFEY hnEF 13
TEE ZBEEHE TRE RBEHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
ERITT F BT F
172
Outstanding at the RRE I RWATE
beginning of the year 6.86 6,450 6.86 10,150
Granted during the REREH
year = = = —
Lapsed during the year RER KK 6.86 (1,800) 6.86 (3,700)

Outstanding at the end RE 4 B 5 R WITE
of the year 6.86 4,650 6.86 6,450

Exercisable at the end RAF4 A A1TE
of the year = - — -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAf&iR R Mist

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based
Transactions (continueq)

(b)

The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are as
follows: (continued)

31. E‘:Hﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’] izt B

5

i

(b) PREYEZEEMEEE E R NEE
Wi EEINT ¢ ()

ESOS 2013: 2013 R REBHESTE -
2014 2013
—EF—-NE —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
MiEFEY hnEF 13
TEE ZBEEHE TEE RBEHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
ERT F BT F
Outstanding at the REA R FEITHE
beginning of the year 4.62 12,030 — —
Granted during the REARRSH
year 4.62 2,570 4.62 12,030
Lapsed during the year IAFER %K%K - - = =
Outstanding at the end RE 4 B 5 RBITE
of the year 4.62 14,600 4.62 12,030

Exercisable at the end RAF# A A1TE
of the year =

The options outstanding at 30 June 2014 under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme and ESOS 2013
had exercise price of HK$6.86 (2013: HK$6.86)
and HK$4.62 (2013: HK$4.62) and weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.8 years
(2013: 1.8 years) and 3.05 years (2013: 4.05 years)

respectively.

R=ZZE-NOEXNA=1+H &
2003 R 17 R BB RE ST EI R 2013 IR
MDRBESTEP  MRITEAR
HDRBETHRED A B 6.86
T(ZE—=F: B%¥6867)
kRB#I2T(ZE—=ZF: 8
¥a627m) AR MEFIIRERE
NP2 RBOSEFE(=ZE—=
18F)RIF(ZE—=
4.05%) °

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based
Transactions (continueq)

(c) Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions of
2003 Share Option Scheme:

Measurement date it&H

Fair vale at measurement date HitgRZARE

Share price &

Evercise price fikf

Evpected volatity BHRE

Option e JBEER

Expected dividend yield Bikaz

Risk free rate (based on Exchange Fund Note BERAZ(RENERLEE)

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

31. %
&

(c)

Ka

R

AEENLRE B
B3 By a)

Bz 3 REERHERY 2 5L (EFO R AR

BBRRTROIDBEREERURE
HWARBERSZMETRBEN
AREFE ERERORERE
ARE=RREMEIR — &R
B GE - RODBENSE
HHAPR R 2B R g A o

N

N

B2 R RE D 2B K 2003 B 14
RIBREETERR

30 June 2014 30 Jung 2013
Z§-RERR=tE ZE-ZERAZTH

HKS/H81.205 - HKS/B1.502  HKS/E0.055 — HKS/ER0.157

HIKS) 5 7.60 HiS/ % 4.8

HKS/ % 6.86 HKS/ % 6,86

26.99% — 28.65% 21.20% - 30.26%

1 year/ £ - 2 years/ & 1 year/ & - 3 years/ &
2.31% 3.5%

0.10% = 0.35% 0.24% - 0.56%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

31. Equity Settled Share-based
Transactions (continueq)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions of
ESOS 2013:

31. &8
B

(c)

Measurement date it&H

Fair value at measurement date HitgRZARE
Share price &

Evercise price fikf

Evpected volatity e

Option e AREES
Expected dividend yield S

BRRAE (REAEZSH)

Risk free rate (based on Exchange Fund Note)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect

the fair value estimate.

The Company estimated that the performance-
based vesting condition of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme would not be achieved and hence the
amount recognised as cost for services received
from the grantees in previous years was reversed
during the year ended 30 June 2013. In addition,
no amortisation of the cost of services in respect
of the share options granted under the ESOS
2013 was recognised during the year ended 30
June 2013 as these options were granted near
the year end date and the Company estimated the
amortisation effect is minimal.

&
<r
%
Q‘“

20 November 2013
Z§-SFt-AtH

HKS/ % 1,000 — HKS/ 8% 1.739

R AEHBNLIRG B

&)

R REBENARENRR

RORBER
AR ERR

REKR2013 K @7

28 Jung 2013
ZE-ZERACTAR

HKS/ 780,456 — HKS/ 881,00

HKS/ 5,75 HKS/ &84 58

HKS) 54,62 HKS/ %462

23.33% - 35.04% 21.20% — 35.99%

0.6 year/ & — 5. years/ & 1 year/F — 6 years/
3.4% 3.5%

0.20% = 1.25% 0.24% — 1.37%

TRHER R DRI BERIBEMEE
(GHETIRE R 7 2 B AR 0 #E
FIRERE) 0 WARBEABRM
NERERIRIEN RS EE
HAEAE - HHRETIRER Eﬂﬁ
EMEE - 8 AEB/RR

HARBERTHERNERTLE -

XX Bl 5T K 88 2 F 2003 R 17
RBESENRBAEERBRK
o Bt - MU FERERS
BEERERDBBENS T 2 RE
BMEANEER-Z-—=F~A
ZtRLEFERFE - Z5 0 B
2013]3&@ CIBRERTEIRE 2
RBENE L AMRFLRAHM
o ARAEFER=F—=
NA=tTRILEFEBHEZRBER
REBE - BRI EETEE
ARAE R A 2 8K o

—MEER FIE(ES)ERATE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BIE2014F 6 30 HILFE

32. Reserves

32. &

Company x5
Investment Share
Share Share  revaluation option General Revenue
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
k& RbEE
kx Rfag Efififs e —REkfE Wi a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT
At 1 July 2012 WZE-ZEtf-A 243,354 429,423 1 798 50,000 288,035 1,011,611
Loss for the year (note 14)  AEEEE(Mt14) = = = = = (3,522) (3,522)
Equity settled share-based ~ RRAEEMMRG BER
fransactions MR 7 - - - (798) - = (798)
2011/12 final dividend BERRIN-F--/
proposed and paid —ZEREBRE - - - - - (19,468) (19,468)
Current year interim diidend ~ BERRINREE
declared and paid hERE - - - - = (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2013 R-F-Z&5B=1H 243,354 429,423 1 - 50,000 250,444 973,222
At 1 July 2013 RZBE-=f+A-H 243,354 429,423 1 - 50,000 250,444 973,222
Loss for the year (note 14)  AEEERZ 14) - - - - - (18,963) (18,963)
Change in fair value of R ENSKER
avallable-for-sale financial MEEED
assets - - 1] - - - (]
Equity setfled share-based ~ RRABEMMRA BER
fransactions g - - - 3,544 - - 3,544
2012/13 final dividend BERRLf=5-2/
proposed and paid —ZERERE - - - - - (29,203) (29,203)
Current year interim diidend ~ BERRINKEE
declared and paid HERES - - - - - (19,468) (19,468)
Transition to no-par value RZE-ME=B=H
regime on 3 March 2014 EYREAENE 40423 (420423) - - - - -
At 30 June 2014 R-F-MEXR=+H 672,777 - (6) 3,544 50,000 182,810 909,125

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014



For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F6F30 HILFE

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the
share premium account was governed by section
48B of the Predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In accordance with the transitional
provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to
the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, on
3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account has become part of the
company’s share capital (see note 30(a)). The use
of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is governed

by the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under accounting principles generally
accepted in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”) to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve is

equal to 50% of their registered capital.

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance

with the accounting policies in note 2(g).

EB2HERAR

RZE-—NE=F=HH ' KK
BERZAZSHNZAIE B AR
ROIEISBIRAE - RIBH B
B A T RBIM R 11 B STIRFTER
ZBEMGR > RZE—MF=
B=H ARG EEEKREEE
ERBRAAREZ —HMH(R
MizE30(a) e RAZRZEB=F
—NFE=F=HEZTHEBAT
RBIFRE o

BRRBEELIERHBABEETR
EEREE e

RIB(EESTHE) - EHEK
EHIBRECEIAERIR
10% (P EARLNBE E5F
ZRDETE RS R E A
ERHBLES  HEZRENES
BREEREME AR 50% BIE

REEMRFREERNEREEN
AHEENMBEEE A AESE
B REFE - WREBMEE2()
FrElz 85T BURTEHE

o s



For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme.

Share option reserve comprises the fair value of
equity settled share based transactions and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(r)(ii).

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(v).

The general reserve has been set up by transfer
of revenue reserve according to resolutions of the
Board of directors.

The distributable reserve of the Company at 30
June 2014 amounted to HK$182,810,000 (2013:
HK$250,444,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.13 per ordinary share (2013: HK$0.12 per
ordinary share), amounting to HK$31,636,000
(20183: HK$29,203,000). The dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

Annual Report 2014

EIROABBELSRBHEARS
MEREMBETITEEROAE
BERFARTHRDZIBERBA
ZARTACHTRONBEBER

ROZBERFEEERTELZ
RODBENDE  ZRHER
B EE20(i) A8 2 EETBER M
BRI o

ERFERERITERIIERN
MBERERMEEZEREZRE - &
REREM E2(v) TE 2 B 5T H
RMEEHE o

—RFBERESERUAFER
BB REERA -

RABR-_ZE—NFEARA=1H
2 U 2 17 A 78 15 182,810,000 7T
(ZZ— =% B ¥250,444,000
o) REIR#%E  EEEHRIKE
ZAREBREASBRERRBY
0.13T(=ZZE—=5 : GREBE
RAEM012T) REeBERBY
31,636,000 t(ZZF—=%F : &
#£29,203,000 7t ) ° 5% % F A A<
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA¥$R RMizE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BiZ 20146530 HILFE

33. Capital Commitments

34.

(@)

The Group had the following commitments not
provided for in the financial statements at the end
of the reporting period:

33.

Authorised capital expenditure and E#EIETH2

xiEIEH

(@ AKERHEBLBEBUTAE
TH B AR MR PR R R

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT

contracted for EARRAE 17,842 25,216
Authorised capital expenditure but S #/EBRTHZ
not contracted for BAREX 26,502 90,938

At 30 June 2014, the Group had several non-
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with
its suppliers with an amount of HK$296,606,000
(2013: HK$136,380,000).

Related Party Transactions 34
Related party Nature of transactions

BB XHHE

GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses (Note)

EEEX W ()

by R-ZE-—NFASA=+H> XK
S EHEMERE L #5R R A
HHKBIIE SBEABYE
296,606,000 T (ZFE—=%F : &
#£ 136,380,000 7T) °

. Bt AR 5

2014 2013

=t LT —z-=f
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BT

5,876 5,570

Remuneration for key management personnel was

disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.

AEEBRERA S 2 BEE MBI 11
1 -

—TE-MEFH @IR(FEE)BRLAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff5#RRMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2014
BE2014F 6530 HILFE

34.

35.

Related Party Transactions

(continued)

Note:

A master service agreement was entered into between the
Company and GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of HLCM, the
Company’s ultimate holding company, on 30 June 2011 for the
provision of management services to the Group by the Service
Providers for a term of three years from 1 July 2011. The
agreement expired on 30 June 2014.

A new master service agreement was entered into between the
Company and GGMC together with GOMC on 2 July 2014 for the
provision of management services to the Group by the Service
Providers for a term of three years from 1 July 2014.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable by the
Company to the Service Providers and any of the subsidiaries
and associated companies of HLCM for the provision of similar
services, if any, exceeds the annual cap of HK$23,000,000
during any of the three financial years ending 30 June 2015, 30
June 2016 and 30 June 2017, the Company would be required
to re-comply with the Listing Rules as appropriate. Details of the
master services agreement were disclosed in the announcement
dated 3 July 2014.

Immediate and Ultimate
Holding Company

At 30 June 2014, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be GuolLine International Limited,
which is incorporated in Bermuda and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be HLCM, which is incorporated
in Malaysia. These entities do not produce financial
statements available for public use.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014

34.

35.

BABE T BI3E 5 =)

BiEE -

RZZE——FRA=1+H A2FHRB
KRHLCMH Kt B 2 7 Guoline Group
Management Co. Limited (fGGMC)J) &
GOMC Limited (TGOMC) (%% F8[ BR 7% 14t F&
ml) mERBHEESREK-_Z——FtA—
HRAAEBREAM=F2EERE - 7T
N — R ZMER - —WERA
=t+HE®R -

RZZE-MELAZR - ARAFBRKAHE
BARAAEERMBA-Z-—NFLtA-HER
HM=F 2 EBERHEEGGMC & GOMCFI L —
BRI E B o

WERAQXTAR=ZZB—HE~A=1+H =T
—R"EXNB=+HEZE—tHFA~A=1H
F=EAFBFEENEMN—F  BRBHERS
RAEAIHLCM KB B A B I B & 1 =) L 28 4L
Moz Rt EAREERARBFE L
PR M5 23,000,000 7T * AR R FEFHET L
mRA - FEAREHEFBEHEN - —H
FEtA=HWAER -

EEgRAR-ZE-—NFEAA=1H
E#EERKR AT A Guoline International
Limited » — R BREZEZMR L 22
A MAKERALERATBHLCM
—ERERATFAMRILZAF - BL
B2 EUHBRAMBARER o



At 30 June 2014
R2014%6 530 H

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at

30 June 2014:

Name of company

KEER

Asian Dragon Limited
Gladko Industries Limited
EREXERAT

Global Flour Trader Limited
BREREZERAT

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare

Products Limited

ENEIEEZARERAT

Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited
ERENBRRAR

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited
THBEENERLA

Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company

Limited
IHEERRERLE

L S Food Investments Limited

Lam Soon (China) Holdings
Company Limited

Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring
Laboratories (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

HIEEZEEHE (FR)ERA

Lam Soon Edible Qils Company
Limited

3

Particulars of
issued capital

EETZRAHE

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 REBER

HK$21,000,000
78# 21,000,000 7T

100 ordinary shares
10,000 deferred shares
100 REBER

10,000 RIEFER

US$5,000,000
5,000,000% 7%

US$10,000,000
10,000,000 %7t

2 ordinary shares
2REBR
USS$1

1%7

2 ordinary shares
2REBER

US$1
1%X7

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

M RAEEE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

The People’s Republic
of China
HEARLNE

Hong Kong
&5

The People’s Republic
of China
FEARLAE

The People’s Republic
of China
REARLNE

Hong Kong
&8

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ABERRNE /B

Hong Kong
&

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ABAARBE /BB

Effective
percentage of
equity holding
RiERFEE L

Group
155

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Company
x4

Principal activity

IEEH

Licensee of factory canteen

IRREHRER

Investment holding
REZR

Trading of commodity derivatives

BRiEES

Manufacturing and trading of
cleaning products
EREREERES

Trading of bran, provision of
trucks rental service and
investment holding

ZRES  EERERRERR

Manufacturing and trading of
flour products

ANERLERES

Manufacturing and trading of
flour products
BRERTERES

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding

REER

Trading of cleaning products
B2ERES

Investment holding
REER

— PO FF

NAZTHEZEMBLATIRE

Notes

[iF3

N1

N1

N1



At 30 June 2014

R2014%F6 530 H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Particulars of establishment percentage of
Name of company issued capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
ATEH ERTZRAHER AR REEHE REHFT R TREH Wiz
Group  Company
155 x4q
Lam Soon Food Industries (BYl) ~ HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited R 11,858,415 ABERARES REER
Lam Soon Food Industries Limited  Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100  Investment holding
HK$83,228,315 BRE/BR REER
Convertible preference
shares HK$25,000,000
LiARB% 83,228,315
maRELR
78 25,000,000 7T
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) ~ MOP$25,000 Macau 100 — Trading of flour, edible oils and
Company Limited B3 25 000 T il cleaning products
HIRRmAE(RM) BRAF B RRRREZERES
Lam Soon International Limited ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
I ABARREE REER
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Investment holding
Company Limited 2REER e REZR
EIE(EE) ITEERAH
Lam Soon Products Supply 1,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour, edible oils and
(Hong Kong) Company Limited 1,000,000 R & &R 55 agency products
BIEERAE(RE)ERAR B eRRRREERES
Lam Soon Realty Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding and the provision
ABtEERA R QREBR BA of warehousing and logistic
services
NERBREHERNDRRSE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,113,100 % 7t of China flour products
BIE(LR) RRERAR hEARLAE BRERLERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000 &7 of China flour products
HEm)RRERAR HEARLAE BRERLERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Limited 2REBR B REER

HEFRRERRAA

Annual Report 2014



At 30 June 2014
R2014%6 530 H

Name of company

AEEH

Lam Soon Systems Limited
HIEZAERA

Lam Soon Trademark Limited

LS Golden Qils & Fats Limited

Richly Choice Development
(PTC) Limited

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited
BOFEERERAR

Shekou Lam Soon Silo
Company Limited
BNEEEEERAR

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils
Company, Limited
R HEERA A

Swamex Food Service Limited

BEXRBARLT

Note:

N1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign

Particulars of
issued capital

ERTZRARE

2 ordinary shares
2RERR

USs$2
ESH

“A” ordinary shares
HK$185,000,000
“B" ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
“C” ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[AJEBR
7#185,000,000 T
[BIEBR
79,900,000 7C
[CIERR
75,100,000 7T

US$1
1%%

US$27,500,000
27,500,000 % ¢

US$9,500,000
9,500,000 %7t

US$12,000,000
12,000,000 % 7t

400,000 ordinary shares
400,000 BB AR

companies under PRC Laws.

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

M REEE

Hong Kong
)5

Cook Islands/Hong Kong
MRS/ BE

British Virgin Islands
ABERRES

British Virgin Islands
ABERARES

The People’s Republic
of China
FEARLAE

The People’s Republic
of China
REARLANE

The People’s Republic
of China
hEARLAE

Hong Kong
&8

Effective
percentage of
equity holding
REHFT R

Group
155

100

100

100

100

100

100

Bt :

Company
#47

100

100

ZEWBAREPEARLINMEERUINE

Principal activity

IEEE

Provision of internet marketing
services

RUSBRATSHRRY

Trademark holding
BERE

Investment holding
RELR

Provision of trustee services

RUEERE

Manufacturing and trading of
flour products

BNERLERES

Provision of silo facilities

RECRRSE

Manufacturing and trading of
edible oils
RAMEERES

Trading of edible oils products

RAHERES

BENREHAM -

— T
==
— =

— PO FF

Notes

iF3

N1



5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A I IEHE

At 30 June 2014
R2014%6 530 H

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBTHEFREENXE SEEKERE
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company for the last RAEAABRRELEEHRZDNT ¢
five financial years are as follows:

2011 2010
—g-—F —2-BF
HK$'M HK$'M

BEHET BEEET

Results ES

Turnover B 4,117 3,618 2,889 2,510 2,193

Operating profit before RINBRFIE

interest, taxation, T FE

depreciation and TEREHEN

amortisation KRR 232 234 29 167 185
Profit/(loss) PN

attributable to equity wmFL (E1R)

shareholders of the

Company 141 131 (36) o1 122

Assets and liabilities BERER

Non-current assets EREEE 801 828 819 757 733
Net current assets FRBEE 907 718 599 729 667
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (85) = = (1) (1)
Non-controlling IR ER

interests (11) (11) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to AT RENL

shareholders of the s

Company 1,612 1,535 1,407 1,474 1,388

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2014
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